# Programs for Innovative Technology Research in State Strategies for Economic Development

National Governors' Association Center for Policy Research and Analysis



## PROGRAMS FOR INNOVATIVE TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH IN STATE STRATEGIES FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

£

Prepared by:

Charles B. Watkins

## National Governors' Association Center for Policy Research and Analysis

December, 1985

### FOREWORD

The National Governors' Association (NGA) wishes to thank the many individuals who contributed time and information for the development of this paper. The paper was authored by Dr. Charles Watkins, Chairman and Professor of Mechanical Engineering at the Howard University School of Engineering. Dr. Watkins served as an American Society of Mechanical Engineering Fellow at NGA from March 1984 through February 1985.

Every attempt has been made to ensure the accuracy and timeliness of the data presented. Descriptions of individual state programs were reviewed by appropriate state officials. Given the speed with which technology development programs are being implemented and expanded, many developments occurred between the time the information was collected and the time the project was completed. This was particularly true of those programs which were just getting under way at the time of the initial data collection.

In those cases where states provided information updating the data contained in the program description, this information has been included in a section entitled Update and Comments. Also included are comments made by the state in response to assessments or comments made by the author. The Update and Comment section immediately follows each individual program description.

This work was supported, in part, by a fellowship sponsored by the American Society of Mechanical Engineering and by a contract with the National Science Foundation through the Council of State Planning Agencies.

The contribution of Maria Heidkamp in providing some of the background and statistical information for this report is gratefully acknowledged. Thanks are also due to Marianne Clarke who updated the program descriptions, Sondra Nelson and Jan Lipkin who edited the manuscript, and to Shirley Christian and Romailia Jensen who provided secretarial assistance.

> Joan L. Wills Director Center for Policy Research and Analysis

### ABSTRACT

The role of basic and applied research in state strategies for economic development through technological innovation is reviewed in relation to current research results on the job creation ability of technology-based firms. With this background, the policy implications of various state strategies, including those involving recruitment of high-technology firms, are examined. The programmatic components of state strategic initiatives are then discussed and conclusions are formed regarding optimal individual state strategies based on the state's economic and demographic profiles. Within this framework, tentative assessments of the strategic research initiatives of ten states are offered.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

1

84

88

# FOREWORD

# BACKGROUND

Introduction

High Technology, Jobs and Public Policy	
Technology and the Innovation Process	
Technology-Based Regional Economic Development	
State Role in Technology-Based Economic Development	
Technology Resources and Development Priorities	
R&D Program Design and Development Objectives	
Assessment of State Programs - Discussion	

# ASSESSMENTS

		· · ·	
Arizona			38
California			42
Indiana			45
Kansas			49
Maryland			53
New York			59
North Carolina	$\mathbf{a}^*$ , where $\mathbf{a}^*$ is the second sec		63
Ohio			68
Pennsylvania			73
Virginia			78
	and the second		

CONCLUSIONS REFERENCES APPENDIX

#### BACKGROUND

#### Introduction

The recent and rather dramatic structural and cyclical changes in the national economy have focused the attention of federal, state, and local government policymakers on programs to stimulate economic growth. The geographic heterogeneity of the nation's economic activity results in these economic changes having an especially profound effect on some local and regional economies. The disparate impacts of the waves of worker dislocations which accompany these changes are particularly troublesome for state and local officials. They create the need for state or local initiatives to stabilize regional economies as well as to ensure long-term prosperity. At the same time, the visible success of foreign technological enterprises and domestic technology-oriented regional economics point to technology as a key ingredient in any strategic formula for economic revitalization. State government, in particular, has assumed a leadership role in encouraging economic development through technological innovation. Most states have already begun to implement program initiatives in economic development based on the exploitation of innovative technologies.

In view of the many new state program initiatives for technology-based economic development, it is useful to place them in a common analytical framework to facilitate comparison and discussion. Having accomplished this, one can review in this context some representative case-study examples of state programs and tentatively assess the relative potential of these programs for achieving development goals. The present report attempts such an analysis, concentrating on programs which promote the research phase of research and development, the first stage of the technological innovation process. In doing this, the report provides background information on the rationale for state technology-based economic development strategies in relation to the results of recent research on the job creation potential of technology-based firms. To provide additional background, the technological innovation process is described. After these preliminaries, the policy implications of state strategies based on technological innovation, including recruitment of technology-based industry, are examined. The

#### High Technology, Jobs and Public Policy

National, state, and local policymakers have been devoting increasing attention to programs to encourage economic growth. At the state level, much of this attention has been directed toward the notion of the high-technology industrial sector in general and new, small high-technology firms in particular as being a solution for declining levels of employment. The press has popularized this notion and perhaps contributed to inflated expectations regarding its potential contribution.

Current research results and thoughtful, informed opinion indicate that technology may indeed be a panacea for the nation's economic woes, but not by creating jobs within the high-technology sector. Some have criticized the term "high technology" itself as contributing to inflated expectations regarding its promise. Some of these critics suggest that the terminology "new technology" and/or "advanced technology" is more descriptive and relevant, while others favor "innovative technology" as the descriptive term. It has been shown that, although the role of the small high-technology firm in job creation is undeniably important, high-technology firms of all sizes are creating new jobs. Large high-technology firms are creating the larger share. Since initiatives targeted toward high-technology industry, traditional industry, large firms, small firms, new firms, or existing firms may represent divergent policy alternatives and compete for scarce resources, the design of an optimal strategy for technology-based economic development is a complex undertaking. Assessment of individual state strategies as well as state and sub-state programs must be viewed in the context of optimal strategy design. Interstate comparison of programs and/or strategies are only meaningful to the extent that development objectives coincide and resource bases are homogeneous.

1、我们就是我们的,我们就是我们就能知道了,我就是你们的时候我们,我们们就不是我们的。" 化乙烯酸

The thrust for much of the recent enthusiasm directed toward small business is found in the work of Birch (1978) in which he attributes two-thirds of all new job creation between 1969 and 1976 to businesses with fewer than twenty employees. More recently, Armington and Odle (1982) reported that between 1978 and 1980, firms employing fewer than 100 people were responsible for only two-fifths of net new jobs. Armington and Odle's work, which utilized a different data base than Birch's, tends to raise questions about development strategies centered around small business alone, while confirming the dynamism of the small firm sector's contribution to job creation.

#### Technology and the Innovation Process

Most persons with an interest in the potential of technology for stimulating economic development have an intuitive understanding of what is meant by the terminology commonly used in discussing this subject. But if asked to articulate their conceptions, few would give the same definition for terms such as "high technology," "technological innovation" or some of the other frequently used terms. It is, therefore, appropriate to review briefly the most widely accepted relevant definitions and conceptualizations of persons who have given some formal attention to the subject.

Riche, et al. (1983) give three alternative definitions of high technology industries which differ in the relative importance placed on a high proportion of technologyoriented workers as opposed to a high ratio of research and development expenditures to sales. Emphasis on the latter index tends to limit the definition to the few industries that most lay persons would agree with, such as drugs, computers, electronics, communications equipment, and aerospace. Unfortunately, reliance on any single definition of the many that various persons have given (Malecki 1984) is probably overly restrictive. A more useful operational definition is that of an industry, either manufacturing or service, with a strong dependence on science and engineering, i.e., wherein new technologies and their applications are a major driving force influencing the marketplace economics of supply and demand.

Similarly, there is little common agreement on the exact elements of the technological innovation process which feeds these industries. It is in itself a complex field of study (Rosegger 1980; U.S. Congress Joint Economic Committee 1980; Tornatzky et al. 1983). A simple-minded view is that the process proceeds from an invention to its initial commercial application as an innovation and then is spread by means of a diffusion-like phenomenon into the marketplace, eventually saturating it and ultimately disappearing as it is supplanted by new technology. Udell and Baker (1982) have depicted the business aspects of the process as shown in Figure 1. Figure 2, which is reproduced from the work of Rorke, et al. (1983), depicts the process in matrix form to illustrate the participants involved in some of the activities at various stages of the process.



Fig. 1. The technological innovation process: a sequence of events through which new products, processes, and services normally pass (Udell and Baker, 1982).

Here, the term "invention" refers to the discovery of a new or improved process or product and the resolution of associated technical problems through research and development. The stage or pipeline model of research and development describes an orderly progression of activities beginning with basic research, progressing through an applied research stage, and culminating in the development of a process or product. A successful development stage would conceptually be followed by extensive marketoriented research, testing, and evaluation. The model is overly simplistic; but it is easily conceptualized and is adequate for most purposes.

It is generally agreed that basic research is distinguished from applied research by the former being pursued (often at universities) primarily for the advancement of scientific or engineering knowledge while the latter (often in industry) is directed toward useful objectives with respect to ultimate creation of a product or process. The distinction is sometimes nebulous, particularly when it is recognized that frequently, much of the justification that scientists and engineers must give to obtain funding for "basic" research is its ultimate connection to some useful objective. Furthermore, some basic research, especially in industry, is characterized as "directed." Development consists of those technical activities undertaken to transform research knowledge into a product or process.

The simple linear pipeline model is not inconsistent with the business-oriented model of Figure 1 or the participant-oriented model of Figure 2, but the figures require some interpretation to clarify the connection. For a product based on a sophisticated new technology, idea generation is usually the result of basic research. Applied research would be involved in evaluation and demonstrating technical feasibility. "Technical Research and Development" and "Product Research and Development" in Figure 1 or alternatively, "Product/Process Evaluation and Refinement" in Figure 2 are all primarily associated with the "development" activities of research and development. These activities are the engineering analysis, design, and testing required to evolve and test a full-scale production prototype from demonstration of the first stage of this process or the "Technical Research and Development" stage in Figure 1 would be the creation of a demonstration prototype.

and Stanford Research Institute (SRI) (1984b). Many others have been established since these reports were published. State and local programs are generally designed to either attract industry from outside the region, promote the stabilization, expansion, and retention of existing industry, or encourage the formation of indigenous technologybased firms through technological entrepreneurship. In many cases, these efforts seek to emulate such successful models as California's Silicon Valley, Massachusetts' Route 128, or North Carolina's Research Triangle Park. These names have become synonymous with desirable high-technology growth. Hence, it is useful to examine the phenomenon of high-technology growth and the factors that influence it to determine which localities may realistically aspire to achieve it and what alternatives may exist.

The concensus view of OTA (1984b), Birch and MacCracken (1984), Malecki (1984), and Shanklin and Ryans (1984) as well as others, is that most localities do not have the technological or financial infrastructure to incubate or accommodate technology-based industry on the scale necessary to replicate the growth of Silicon Valley, Route 128 or even Research Triangle Park. This view is reinforced by the revealing statistic that during World War II, the federal government injected over \$35 billion (NGA 1983) into the California economy. Likewise, Massachusetts also benefited from large defenserelated expenditures during the 1940s and early 1950s. However, it is important not to misinterpret these facts. The flow of government funds to these areas may only be incidental in the sense that the defense contracting firms simply happened to be located in those regions (Malecki 1983) and development was actually the result of a process of industrial evolution (Dorfman 1983). The most important impact of federal government research and development activity is the agglomeration of technical employees and resulting employment generation through new firm formation, spin-offs, and corporate innovative activity (Malecki 1983).

The pessimistic view of the development potential of most localities as a center for technology-based industry is reinforced by quantitative statistical research as well as more subjective studies and informed opinion. Harris (1984b) investigated statistically the factors influencing branch formation of high-technology firms and new independent high-technology establishments in metropolitan areas. These findings indicated that both types of businesses were most sensitive to the availability of scientific and technical workers. Agglomeration economies resulting from the presence of a significant amount

It is generally agreed that there are many limitations involved in short-term strategies aimed <u>solely</u> at recruiting technology-based industrial firms. Moreover, from a national perspective, such efforts tend to cancel each other, producing a "zero-sum game." However, as pointed out by OTA (1984) and NGA (1983), such recruiting may be an important <u>component</u> of state technological innovation strategy. According to OTA (1984b), this is particularly important for states lacking indigenous technological infrastructure which can then utilize the technological impact of a major branch plant as part of a bootstrap strategy to develop their own infrastructure to the point where significant technological entrepreneurship is feasible. This view is disputed by Malecki (1983), who argues that production facilities have little impact and that research and development is the key. Unfortunately, as indicated previously, industrial research and development facilities are less mobile than branch production facilities.

In spite of the foregoing, technological innovation need not be abandoned as a component of economic development strategies for areas which are less-developed technologically for these localities. OTA (1984b) and Birch (1984) advocate emphasis on employing technology, perhaps developed elsewhere, to create jobs. Shanklin and Ryan (1983) as well as Birch and MacCracken (1984) emphasize entrepreneurship per se, encompassing also the low-technology and service sectors. NGA (1983) stresses the use of new and advanced technologies to revitalize older smokestack industries as a medium-term strategy, particularly in heavily industrialized states. Malecki (1984) points out that encouragement of local research and development activity, using universities as the foundation for growth, is important even if few high-technology jobs emerge. This is because these localities will thereby improve their attractiveness as sites for economic activities that grow less spectacularly than high technology, but that use human skills in non-routine ways.

## State Role in Technology-Based Economic Development

Fostering economic growth and employment is emerging as a critical leadership function of state governments (NGA 1983; SRI 1984b). State and local governments are, because of their decentralized nature, often in a more appropriate position than the federal government to leverage or provide the cooperation and partnership involvement necessary (NGA 1983; SRI 1984b; Peltz and Weiss 1984). States perform key functions

(6) technology and information transfer; and

(7) research and high-technology industrial parks and incubator facilities.

Although these seven functional categories provide sufficient operational classifications to cover most of the state initiatives, a broader perspective is needed in terms of policy variables for an analysis of state technological innovation strategies. Figure 3 is a matrix representation of the policy tools that state governments possess and the target areas in which these tools can have an impact. Broadly speaking, the raw materials for the technological innovation process are technology resources, human resources and commercialization resources. They constitute the region's technological infrastructure. State government can have a major influence on the availability of these resources through the fulfillment of its responsibilities and the exercise of its authority. There are, however, real resource and wealth constraints which obviously limit a state's ability to utilize the tools at its disposal to effect change.

	1. T			Figure	3		e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
State	Policy	Tools a	nd Ta	rgets fo	r Techn	ological	Innovation

		STATE POLICY TOOLS										
	TARGETS	Planning, Coordination and Policy Development	Semi- Autonomous Public Enterprise	Direct R&D Support	Education and Training	Direct/ Indirect Debt and Equity Financing	Information/ Technology Transfer	Brokering	Taxation	Regulation	Public Works Infrastructure	Quality of Life
Tech	hology Resources		· ·	-					•			
1. 2.	University/Industry R&D Federal R&D	X X	Х	X			X	<b>X</b>	X	x	x	
3.	University/Federal R&D	x	X	х				x				
4. 5.	University/State R&D Industry/Small Bus. R&D	X	x	X		.*	x		<b>x</b>		x	x
Huma	an Resources		· .				alisti se to sa se sa			· ·		
1.	Scientists and Engineers	X			. X .				· · ·		x	X
3.	Skilled Workers	x x			x					ана. 1917 — Полонания 1917 — Полонания		
4.	Entrepreneurs	X			х						X	X
Com	mercialization Resources		-			•	and the second					
1.	Technical Assistance	. X .	X		,		X					
2.	Seed/Venture Capital	x	x			x	^	X	x	x		P
4	Marketing	X					an a	X	· .			
5.	Production	X				X		111			X	
Cata	lysts/											· ·
Age	contraction Factors	<b>v</b> .	÷			÷	<b>v</b>	Y	Y		×	. <b>Y</b> .
2.	Suppliers	x			· .		x	^	x		x	x
3,	Competitors	X					X		X	1	x	X
4.	Role Models	x		4 			X		. <b>X</b>		x	X

цц Сл

#### Technology Resources and Development Priorities

As discussed by OTA (1984b), a threshold amount of technological infrastructure is a prerequisite for significant high-technology growth. In addition to human, financial and technology resources, this infrastructure provides the catalytic ingredients needed to stimulate technological innovation such as proximity to customers, suppliers, competitors, and role models. The technological infrastructure of a state is perhaps best characterized by the existing amount or concentration of technology-based industry. The geographic distribution of employment in three alternatively defined hightechnology industry groups is given in Tables 1 and 2. The data are given in terms of absolute employment in Table 1 and as a percentage of total nonagricultural employment in Table 2. The data were supplied by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. The Group I definition is linked to a high percentage of technical workers. Group II consists of industries with high ratios of research and development expenditures to sales. Group III is a composite based on a definition combining the two measures.

The data in Tables 1 and 2 contain certain deceptions. The most important of these is that service industries are excluded and that employment in manufacturing facilities of technology-based firms, facilities which contribute little to a region's technological infrastructure, is included. Further, the existence of local or regional technological infrastructure sufficient to incubate or attract technology-based industry can be diluted when examining aggregate state statistics. Farrell (1983) lists twenty-two "developing high-tech centers" as local areas having a significant potential for development; these are in addition to the "inature high-tech centers" in California, Massachusetts, and North Carolina. Therefore, the data presented here are only useful in a relative sense and even then, a great deal of care must be exercised in drawing any firm conclusions. For example, if the stringent Group II definition is applied, the only states appearing in the top ten in both tables are California, Massachusetts, Connecticut, and New Jersey. At the other extreme, the bottom ten in both tables include Hawaii, Alaska, Montana, Wyoming, North Dakota, West Virginia, and Delaware. Delaware. paradoxically, because the chemical industry is excluded from the strict Group II definition and included in Group I and III, tops these latter lists in Table 2.

16

网络小麦属 建硫酸盐酸盐 装饰的 法推销权 静静 法保险 法实际通知 化分析

and the state and the second of the

#### Table 2

High Technology Employment as a Percent of Total Nonagricultural Employment in All States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the Virgin Islands, 1983 Annual Averages (1)

GROUP I	GROUP II	GROUP TIT
Delaware	New Hampshire 7.1	Delaware
Michigan 19.7	Connecticut 6.8	Connecticut 12.2
Connecticut 18.8	Arizona 6.4	Massachusetts
New Hampshire 18.0	California	New Hampshire 11.1
Massachusetts 16.6	Massachusetts 6.3	New Jersey
Indiana 16.2	Vermont 6.3	California 9.7
New Jersey 16.1	Washington 4.9	Vermont
- 19X35	Puerto Kico 4.3	Arizona 8.1
Obia (5.7	Utan	ruerto Kico 8.1
Vermont 14.7		Unebieden (* 7.9
Kanese Stanford 16 A	Colorado 33	Masnington
Oklaboma	Minnesota	Colorado 6.7
Colorado	Missouri	Kansas 6.5
Illinois	Indiana 2.9	Missouri
Missouri 13.6	United States 2.8	New York
Wisconsin 13.6	Florida 2.8	United States 6.3
Arizona	New York 2.8	Utah
United States 13.4	Texas 2.5	Tennessee 6.1
Minnesota 13.0	Maryland	South Carolina 5.9
Louisiana 12.7	North Carolina 2.0	Texas 5.9
Pennsylvania 12.6	Pennsylvania 2.0	Illinois
Tennessee12.6	Rhode Island 2.0	Ohio5.7
Iowa12.4	Alabama	Pennsylvania 5.7
South Carolina 12.3	Illino15 1.9	Maryland 5.4
New Tork	Maine	W15CON510
Utah	UKianoma 1.9   Tubba	North Carolina 5.1
Wasnington	Nobasela 47	- VIFGINIA
Arkansas. (1.0)	Neu Meyine	102N0
Maryland western 115	NEW NEXICO	New Movies 65
North Carolina 11 0	Bregon 1.6	Virnin Telande
Puerto Rico	South Dakota 1.4	Florida
New Mexico 10.7	Georgia 1.3	West Virginia
Virginia 10.7	Іома 1.2	Rhode Island 4.2
Alabama 10.6	South Carolina 1.2	Oregon 4.1
Mississippi 10.5	Virginia 1.2	- Alabama
West Virginia 10.0	Arkansas 0.9	Louisiana
Georgia	Michigan	Kentucky
Idaho	Tennessee 0.9	Michigan
North Dakota 9.7	Kentucky	Mississippi
Wyoming. 9.6	Mississippi	Oklahoma 3.6
Florida	Louisiana	Nebraska
Rhode island	Nevada	Georgia
Uregon	W15C0N51N	CHOMBLELSE JELE
Nedraska	NARIAWATE	Nating
- Alaska	NUTCH DEKUTE	South Debots 24
JOURN JAKOTa	Distaict of Columbia 8.1	Uvomino 1 1
- VICGIN 1518005	Montana 01 Montana 01	Montana n G
- HURGANA		District of Columbia. 0.6
Novada	Alaska	Alaska
District of Columbia 5.2	Нашајј	Нашајј
	Vincin Telande	North Dakota 85

<sup>1</sup>Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor

<sup>2</sup>Employment of less than 100 workers

### Table 3

# FY 82 R&D Expenditures and Personal Income (billions)

		INDUSTRY*			
STATE	FEDERAL R&D SUPPORT	R&D SUPPORT (EST)	UNIVERSITY PERFORMED R&D	FED. LAB.* PERFORMED R&D	TOTAL*** R&D PERSONAL (EST) INCOME
Alabama	0.562	0.034	0.071	0.322	0.616 33.47
Alaska	0.040		0.038	0.021	
Arizona	0.264	0.548	0.101	0.079	0.851
Arkansas	0.043	0.056	0.036	0.026	0.121 mainte 19.12
California	8.888	2.992	0.947	2.353	12.431 304.65
Colorado	0.557	0.421	0.137	0.167	1.003 36.66
Connecticut	0.440	0.888	0.152	0.015	1.363 42.22
Delaware	0.035		0.018	0.023	6.90
District of Columbia	0.955		0.063	0.716	9.29
Florida	1.776	0.931	0.168	0.769	2.778
Georgia	0.217	0.178	0.170	0 <b>.</b> 070	0.463
Hawaii	0.045		0.043	0.011	bealst qual1.30
Idaho	0.127		0.018	0.113	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Illinois	0.543	2.153	0.283	0.284	2.782
Indiana	0.186	0.908	0.123	0.044	1.125 53.86
Iowa	0.136	0.335	0.111	0.027	0.522 30.89
Kansas	0.638		0.056	0.007	28.07
Kentucky	0.097	0.118	0.048	0.016	0.243 32.52
Louisiana	0.237	0.142	0.098	0.038	0.435 44.41
Maine	0.024		0.019	0.004	<sup>2060</sup> 032 <sup>60</sup> 04968 9 <b>.86</b>
Maryland	2.850		0.351	1.997	50.66
Michigan	0.377	4.265	0.226	0.045	4.724 98.09
Massachusetts	2.775	1.170	0.470	0.465	4.018 67.82
Minnesota	0.379	0.800	0.147	0.024	1.243 45.56
Mississippi	0.126		0.050	0.088	19.49
Missouri	0.911	0.389	0.130	.0,030	1.346
Montana	0.043	s <sub>na</sub> s <del>an</del> g sight	0.020	<b>0.179</b>	. 689:5 <del></del> 96 Jaco 24,20 <b>7.50</b>
Nebraska	0.032	0.025	0.053	0.013	0.089 16.95
Nevada	0.376		0.018	0.063	

. A second second of the second seco

				Т	al	ole 4			•
FY	82	R&D	Expenditures	as	a	Percentage o	f	Personal	Income

化二乙二酰胺 医动脉体 计进行计划 网络小麦 化增量预算

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		INDUSTRY*		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
STATE	FEDERAL R&D SUPPORT	R&D SUPPORT (EST)	UNIVERSITY F PERFORMED PE <u>R&amp;D</u>	ED. LAB.** RFORMED R&D	TOTAL*** R&D (EST)
Alabama	1.679	0.102	0.212	0.962	1.840
Alaska	0.601	e e la companya de la La companya de la comp	0.571	0.315	<u></u>
Arizona	0.927	1.924	0.355	0.277	2.988
Arkansas	0.225	0.293	0.188	<b>0.136</b>	0.633
California	2.917	0.982	0.311	0.772	4.080
Colorado	1.519	1.148	0.374	0.456 and the second	2.736
Connecticut	1.035	2.103	0.366	0.035	3.228
Delaware	0.507	er di 🛶 🗍 Ag	0.261	0.319	
District of Columbia	10.280	i de la companya de la	0.678	7.707 (C.C.)	n an a suite ann an Airtean 1996 Ann an Airtean 1997 - Ann an Airtean
Florida	1.596	0.836	0.151	0.691	2.496
Georgia	0.414	0.340	0.324	0.134	0.883
Hawaii	0.398		0.389	0.097	
Idaho	1.482		0.210	1.318	
Illinois	0.399	1.581	0.208	0.208	2.043
Indiana	0.345	1.686	0 <b>.228</b>	0.082	2.089
Iowa	0.440	1.084	0.359	0.087	1.690
Kansas	2.273	a da ante a Ante a da ante a da a	0.200	0.025	ey even and a second se
Kentucky	0.298	0.363	0.148	0.049	0.747
Louisiana	0.534	0.320	0.221	0.086	0.980
Maine	0.243		0.193	0.041	A. 28 <sup>°</sup> ■■
Maryland	5.626		0.693	3.942	Verse verster T
Michigan	0.384	4.348	0.230	0.046	4.816
Massachusetts	4.092	1.725	0.693	0.684	5.924
Minnesota	0.832	1.756	0.323	0.053	2.728
Mississippi	0.646		0.256	0.452	
Missouri	1.845	0.787	0.263	· 0.061	2.726
Montana		ne ne ne Conflictione <del>ne</del> estatue	a na e <b>e 0°. 267</b> nga a kasing e	- 2.387	18 <u>–</u> – 1
Nebraska	0.189	0.147	0.313	0.077	0.525
Nevada	3.622	<del></del>	0.173	0.607	al a <del>n</del> a s

These data illustrate an obvious existing pattern of the agglomeration of government, industry, and university research and development in certain states. Clearly, those localities in which it is already concentrated have the inside track on its further exploitation for economic development. The recognized high-technology states of California and Massachusetts tend to rank higher than the others in the absolute levels of research and development but tend, because of their relatively large populations, to drop in rank when compared on the basis of expenditures as a fraction of personal income. Economies of scale in converting research and development to innovation may be possible.

It is also important to recognize that in several states, such as Maryland, New Mexico, Florida, and Virginia, a large component of their enormous federal research and development expeditures are due to the presence of federal laboratories. The ability to exploit these federal technology resources could be a critical factor in determining the success of technology-based economic development in the few states which are rich in them.

Due to the importance of the university in various technology-based economic development scenarios, research and development expenditures at the universities within a state are of particular interest. These expenditure totals in Table 3 are a measure of the collective capacity and capabilities for performing research and for training research personnel within the universities in a state and an indication of the ability of the universities to compete on a national level for research funding. The range of university research and development expenditures as a fraction of state personal income given in Table 4 ranges from a high of 0.693 percent in Massachusetts to a low of 0.110 percent in New Jersey. The statistics in Table 4 are more meaningful as a basis for interstate comparison than raw expenditure totals since they account for differences in population and tax base. States at the lower end of the range will need to consider placing more emphasis on the development of research capability in their university systems if technological innovation is pursued as an economic development strategy.

Since funding of university research is dominated by the federal government, research and development expenditures indicate only the existence of the potential for performing research likely to produce technological innovation within a state. Industry-

# Table 5

# University Patents Granted During Period of 01/63 - 12/83

State	Patents	State	Patents
Total U.S.	3,643	Rhode Island	12
California	747	Arizona	<b>9</b> ******
Massachusetts	689	Tennessee	9. see al <b>9</b> . see al se
Iowa	230	Connecticut	8
Wisconsin	214	South Carolina	8 1 4 1 1
Illinois	188	New Mexico	7
Indiana	185	Colorado	6
Michigan	152	Hawaii	<b>4</b> - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -
New York	149	Minnesota	<b> </b>
Ohio	135	Mississippi	4
Utah	130	Arkansas	<b>3 1 1 1</b>
Maryland	96	Louisiana	<b>3</b>
*Pennsylvania	87	Oregon	3
Georgia	54	District of Columbia	ng shi ka ta shi sa <b>2</b> 5 marti s
Kansas	52	Alaska	0
Missouri	<b>49</b>	Delaware	0
Texas	49	Indiana	<b>0</b> • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Virginia	48	Maine	
Kentucky	46	Montana	0
Florida	39	Nevada	0
Washington	32	New Hampshire	0
North Carolin	ia 24	North Dakota	0
Alabama	22	South Dakota	10 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 -
Oklahoma	20	Vermont	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Nebraska	20	West Virginia	0
New Jersey	16	Wyoming	and the second
			the second second second

# \*Known to be incomplete.

Source of institutional data: Science Indicators Unit, NSF Unpublished data, 1984.

Q.

# Table 6 (continued)Manufacturing Employment

STATE	% CHANGE IN MANUFAC- TURING EMPLMT 1976-81	% OF WKRS EMPLOYED IN MANUFACTURING, 1984
Wisconsin	4.6	22.2
Delaware	4.1	22.3
Rhode Island	3.9	26.3
New Jersey	1.9	20.4
Idaho	1.3	12.3
Iowa	1.1	15.4
Mississippi	0.6	22.0
Missouri	0.6	18.7
Maryland	-0.3	10.1
New York	-0.4	17.7
Kentucky	-1.1	15.9
Hawaii	-1.7	5.0
Montana	-2.1	5.5
Pennsylvania	-2.7	22.1
Indiana	-4.7	25.2
Ohio	-4.8	23.8
North Dakota	-5.6	4.7
Illinois	-6.9	19.0
West Virginia	-7.2	14.1
Michigan	-7.8	23.9
U.S. Total	6.9	18.3

# Source: Bureau of Labor Statistcs, U.S. Department of Labor

education and training are almost universal and lie outside the scope of the present discussion. After education and training, program initiatives aimed at increasing the technological research base for innovation are the most numerous and are the focus of much of the present work. From 1978 through the end of fiscal year 1984, \$369 million in state funds had been committed for research-related programs. Table 7 lists the contributions to this total from individual state programs, ranging from support for basic research to non-remunerative grants for product development. At the close of calendar year 1984, this total had reached nearly \$450 million, including a new \$57 million initiative in New Jersey.

Programs which fund product development through equity or royalty participation are excluded. Entries in this table may include support for programmatic initiatives other than research in cases where disaggregation from umbrella program funding was difficult.

Many state programs that support the research phase of research and development for economic development are university-based or connected (Cornell University 1984), and most devote a significant fraction of their resources to sponsorship of joint university/industry research. A few programs also sponsor innovative applied research by small firms. Other programs promote interaction between universities and industry by campus research parks and incubator facilities.

A comprehensive study of university/industry research relationships has been conducted by the National Science Board (NSB) (NSB 1982a; 1982b), while the General Accounting Office (GAO) (GAO 1983) examined the federal role in university/industry cooperation. Numerous fora have been held to discuss university/industry relationships and the topic has been examined in contributions to the permanent literature as well (see Lynn and Long 1982; Azaroff 1982; Hutt 1983). This literature contains useful facts and informative discussions of the philosophical issues involved, but little to assist in optimal program design. For example, GAO (1983) touts research parks as being the most effective model of university/industry cooperation, whereas NSB (NSB 1982a) claims that they are relatively ineffective.

# Table 7

# Recent State Research Program Initiatives --Cumulative Funding Commitments through Fiscal 1984

STATE	FUNDING (millions)	RESEAR PROJE GRAN	RCH T CT NT	ECHNOLOG RESEARCH CENTER	GY I OTHER
Alabama	1.0	X			· · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Alaska	0.8	X			
Arizona	19.5			X	n an the state of
Arkansas		· ·			a na sprata i
California	6.4	X			1
Colorado	*	x		х	And Constant and South
Connecticut			1. 19		
Delaware		X States			n an
Florida	13.9	x		x	nan sa <b>X</b> arana ila
Georgia	21.0	x	-	X	
Hawaii	1.7	X. x			$\frac{1}{M_{\rm eff}} = \frac{1}{M_{\rm eff}} \frac{1}{M_{\rm eff}} = \frac{1}{M_{\rm eff}} \frac{1}$
Idaho	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Illinois	18.0	X			land and <b>X</b> is the second
Indiana	20.0	х	х		en andre Carriere
Iowa	2.0	x			
Kansas	1.0	at the part of the <b>X</b> of	а N -	X	
Kentucky					
Louisiana	6.2	x			a second
Maine		2.6	х. <sup>1</sup> .		
Marvland	1.9	2 <sup>1</sup>		x	ې مەرىپى بىرى
Michigan	23.0	x	A	x	an a
Massachusetts	25.0	x		x	
Minnesota	5.0	×		x	
Mississippi	<u> </u>				Y
Missouri	4.0 1 b	v			
Montana	* *	· • •		V	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Mohraeka			 		an grad a star a star 🖍 de s
Novodo					

More recent studies by the National Science Foundation (NSF) have contributed somewhat more substantive information. Three reports by NSF personnel (Johnson and Tornatzky 1984; Johnson, et al. 1984; Eveland, et al. 1984) have dissected the NSF University/Industry Cooperative Research Centers and University/Industry Cooperative Research Grant programs. These findings of these studies, among other things, illustrate the fact that university/industry cooperation in basic research will not necessarily lead immediately to tangible products of technological innovation for the participating firms. In a complementary, externally contracted study (Abt Associates 1984), the factors affecting university spin-off firm establishment were identified. These results confirmed the crucial role of an extensive base of high-quality research in technological areas relevant to industry. Other factors identified as important were faculty entrepreneurism and consulting, and to a lesser extent, external technological infrastructure.

The two most prevalent modes of state sponsorship of research related to economic development are the university affiliated technology research center and the applied research project grant. Both types of programs usually require matching support from non-state sources. In their implementation by states, these programs often resemble the two aforementioned NSF programs. The distinction between the two types of state programs is sometimes blurred. Programs which are primarily research project grant programs have been used to establish technology research centers; technology research centers can operate as a funding umbrella for aggregated individual projects supported by a research project grant program. Further, a few newly established "Centers" are little more than a name, and there is no attempt at focused research on a significant scale.

The university technology research center is generally conceived as a vehicle for conducting research in some specific important technological area. Such centers frequently focus on technologies that are interdisciplinary or cross-disciplinary, such as manufacturing systems and biotechnology. The center concept improves research productivity and makes possible broad-based, cohesive approaches to solving complex problems. It should also enhance the quality and quantity of the scientific and engineering instruction at the university. Often, the research conducted by a center is directed basic or applied research of interest to a wide constituency of the center's

commercialization and exploitation by the private sector. Many states have implemented technology transfer and commercialization assistance programs to facilitate this process in various ways.

The role of state government in enhancing technology transfer has been discussed by Bearse (1984). For purposes of the present discussion, state technology transfer programs are generally of four types. The first two types of programs involve the development of new technologies and are targeted at the creation of new firms. One such program type actively seeks to exploit new technology developed at a university (or in some cases, government laboratories) for commerical development. The other assists in the commercialization of new technology by providing technical and managerial support services to inventors and entrepreneurs for product and process development, often by means of a university-based innovation center. The final two program types exist principally to accelerate the diffusion of existing advanced "off-the-shelf" technology to industry for stabilization or expansion. These programs accomplish this either by providing, in one type, information or in the other type, field extension services to existing firms.

Other commercialization assistance programs seek to provide managerial and technical (in the broad sense) assistance to small firms and may or may not be only targeted to technology-based firms. They may also provide seed or second-stage risk-capital financing of entrepreneurial efforts or simply provide linkages to external sources of risk capital. Their primary role is the support of small and, often, new firms.

Figure 4 illustrates the relationship of some program types to development objectives.

# FIGURE 4 RELATIONSHIP OF PROGRAM TYPES TO DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	OBJECTIVES							
PROGRAM	INDUSTRIAL RECRUITMENT	INDUSTRIAL EXPANSION AND RETENTION	INDUSTRIAL STABILIZATION	INDUSTRIAL FORMATION					
Education and Training	H	М	L	M					
University Technology Research Centers	Н	Н	М	M					
Applied Research Project Grants	L	Н	Н	Н					
Technology Transfer (Technology Development)	L	Н	Н	H					
Technology Transfer (Technology Application)	L	М	Н	L					
Commercialization Assistance (other than Technology Transfer)	L	M	L	Н					

H = High degree of effectiveness

M = Moderate degree of effectiveness

L = Low degree of effectiveness

#### Assessment of State Programs - Discussion

The preceding discussion provides some background for the primary task of the present work, the critical review of selected state research programs for technologybased economic development. As pointed out by OTA (1984b) and Peltz and Weiss (1984). there are many difficulties associated with an objective evaluation of such programs. First, the goals of state programs differ from one state to another. Although employment growth is perhaps the most common ultimate objective, various states place different emphasis on it in relation to other possible goals, such as increased incomes, business development and retention, economic diversification, increased industrial productivity, and creating or retaining competitive advantages in certain industrial sectors. The difficulty of the assessment task is exacerbated by lack of comparability between programs, their integration into strategies, and state resources for program implementation. In addition, there are numerous technical difficulties associated with the newness of most programs, the absence of standardization of effectiveness measures. the lack of data collection on program impact, and the difficulty of attributing causality in such data. The newness of the programs poses special difficulties, since the ultimate success of an invention or idea derived from research cannot actually be determined until it reaches the marketplace. The average time lag for such innovation to occur has been estimated to be anywhere from three to ten years (Joint Economic Committee 1980).

Because of these difficulties and because of the limited time and manpower resources available for the present study, the ten tentative program assessments contained in the next section are at best superficial and subjective. They are presented more to raise questions than to provide answers. Hopefully, they will provide a starting point for more in-depth study. In any case, the symbolic and psychological value of these programs, even those which are successful in promoting technological innovation, may be at least as important for demonstrating a state's economic vitality as for resulting in substantive and tangible economic outcomes. The ten states selected were chosen either because of the relative maturity of their programs or for some novel characteristic feature of their program. They are fairly representative in terms of their geographic location, economic profiles, program size, scope, and content. ASSESSMENTS

# PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION

ARIZONA COMPA

a pri sch sprit

Program: severe severable and	Engineering Excellence Center (differe) where working
on a photograph again a firmal	sympton and the second constrained to periodicity to be the
Year Begun: de secondade de se	1979 - Anglis and Astronomy Astronomic Constitution
ing and the second result of the radius	and analyzed the design of solutions and the second second second second second second second second second sec
Current Annual Funding:	Incremental start-up funding plus an estimated \$3.9 million in continuing costs to the state in appropriations.
gradad waa maala dhaaqay aak	have generated as the exercise of the second of the second s
Cumulative Funding:	ware the self (1983-84), drawn woollow and it applicable
	an an in the second statement of the second statement of the second statements and
a. State appropriations b. Industry	$ \begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$
and the c. Other described when	ene (audite d'un <b>\$3.5 million</b> y de entre est la timatea del registrationes)
	en e
Program Goals:	To place Arizona State University's College of Engineering and Applied Science among the nation's foremost education and research centers; to contribute to and improve economic growth in the state.
	and the second of the second
Administrative Structure:	University-administered program. 2007 Conserve Adverserve a
a and all and a second	e texenser classifier are dien un texen alle configer and
Program Elements: Section of the section of the sec	Facilities improvement, faculty enlargement, federal and industrial-sponsored research and development.
Benefits/Outcomes Claimed:	Five-fold increase in college research expenditures over four-year period, 50 percent increase in engineering enrollments over six years. Several major new high-

technology business expansions and relocations have located recently in the area.

A particular to search and that will also any second on the primarit watch.
A particular of the best of the track of the second of the particular second of \$62.

38

with the court galaxies of to equilate the action devices being warpened. I solition

fold during the first four years. It reached more than \$8 million in awards during 1983-84. Most of this research is federally funded, as is typical of conventional basic research at most universities. Engineering enrollment at ASU has increased 50 percent over a sixyear period.

The economic development goals of the Center for Engineering Excellence program have not yet been fully articulated, except that the center is expected to contribute to and improve the economic growth of the state through providing support to engineering-related industry. A research park, which will include a small-firm incubator, is under development on university-owned property in Tempe. There is anecdotal evidence of successful industrial recruiting efforts which may have been aided by the development of the center; several major new high-technology businesses have recently located in the Phoenix area.

In view of Arizona's success in attracting technology-based industry and its boom in manufacturing, there is little incentive to put in place a university/industry applied research project grant program, especially one focusing on applied research. The Center for Excellence program, as it exists is probably the best type of program for stimulating increased economic development through industrial recruitment, even if it falls short of its optimistic national leadership goals. In the interest of balance, perhaps more emphasis should be placed on new firm creation from spin-off of university research. In addition, a formal university/industry matching grant program leaning toward basic research, like the MICRO program in neighboring high-tech California, might be considered. Such a program could also involve the University of Arizona in Tucson. Although an Optical Technology Center is being enhanced at the University of Arizona, and a large federal government biotechnology research grant was awarded to them, there is no large state-sponsored program of development comparable to the ASU Center for Engineering Excellence to encourage growth in the Tucson area where the U.S. Conference of Mayors has established a federal laboratory technology transfer. Finally, the absence of a significant effort related to biotechnology at ASU, an area which will be of increasing technological and economic importance in the future, is notable, although the relative proximity of Tempe and Tucson may mitigate against the duplication of large programs.

### PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION CALIFORNIA

#### 가 영화화관소의 것

Program: apart issue of inter MICRO Program a statistic statistics and its activation of a statistic interval of the statistic statistics in the statistic statistic statistics in the statistic statistic statistics in the statistics in the statistic statistic

Cumulative Funding: DAD of Campung (1983-84), Andrews practice y mining bell

a. State appropriations in a state of \$4.2 million and domestic assign to us 1903 b. Non-State sources \$6.8 million b. Conduct of generations and the state of th

Program Goals:To help California electronics and computer industries<br/>maintain leadership by expanding relevant university<br/>research and training.Administrative Structure:Policy board with university, industry, and state<br/>representation.

Program Elements: Joint funding with industry of directed basic and applied research leading to products in mid- to long- term. Benefits/Outcomes Claimed: Increased university/industry interaction.

There are at least one or two "world class" research universities in the UC system. The bulk of the MICRO funds are devoted to projects at UCLA, Berkeley, and Santa Barbara. Because of the quality and quantity of the California microelectronic research enterprise, many of the MICRO projects are eventually likely to pay economic dividends. However, the private universities, including "world class" Stanford, are not included in the program nor is the separate system of California State Universities. In light of the financial resources available in California, the program funding is modest. There is little attention given to technology transfer through university spin-off, where industry would allow the universities to exercise this option. The program is geared toward the economic development goals of expansion and retention of Silicon Valley-type firms. While that is a goal consistent with the state's high-technology economic profile, it probably does not exploit the full potential of university research and development in microelectronics. Moreover, technologies which are on the verge of commercializable breakthroughs, such as biotechnology, are ignored even though California public and private universities have significant resources to be exploited in such technologies.

#### Update and Comments

Annual state funding for the MICRO Program doubled in the 1984-85 fiscal year to \$4.2 million. In addition, during the current fiscal year (85-86) the MICRO program will receive more than \$4.4 million in state aid. This amounts to a 110 percent increase in funding over the last two years.

#### PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION

INDIANA

Program: A second and Corporation for Science and Technology ender vilkt<sup>ive</sup> wit**1983**, enderte er eller und der eren und der eller wie und Year Begun: Current Annual Funding: Alter Advances and a start of the sector of the (1983-85) a. State appropriations \$20 million **b.** Industry  $\mathbf{\hat{r}}_{\mathbf{r}}$  and  $\mathbf{\hat{r}}_{\mathbf{r}}$  is the observation  $\mathbf{N}/\mathbf{A}$  is the observation of the basis of the observation of the basis Cumulative Funding: Same as Current Funding. Sectors were a substrated and the sector of the sector and the sector of the sector and the sector and the sector of the Program Goals: To strengthen the state economy through development of scientific and technological-based research and development ventures. Private, not-for-profit corporation. Administrative Structure: en en de la transmission de la desta d Interim funding support for applied research and **Program Elements:** development projects to transfer technology from the universities and industrial research and development laboratories into commercially viable products, processes, and services. The Corporation also provides technology advice and counseling and business/financial advice and

Benefits/Outcomes Claimed: No specific benefits claimed.

counseling.

45

化化化理试验 医外外的 医小

o Biotechnology;

s a climate o la Control Systems; que l'este d'un tel complexite du cue l'induced terme destructures de set re-

or Energy Development; the state of the stat

化氯化物 法保证证书 医外外的 化分子

- and o Industrial Byproducts; and a super product section for the area area of the sections
- er of the Information Processing; index of the test and the second of the test of the processing and the second

the second second second second press and second second second second second second second second second second

Carl and the second of the second the second second second second second second

- o Integrated Optics;
- Manufacturing Technologies;
- o Medical Technology;
- o Microelectronics; and subserve the base of the base
- o Telecommunications.

Initial bienniel funding for the corporation is \$20 million.

The corporation's emphasis on applied research grants places its program into the applied research project grant classification; grants have been made to universities, non-profit organizations and business firms for technology-oriented projects. Industrial matching funds for university research projects are not required, but project proposals are supposed to "demonstrate a clear path to a commercial process or product." However, several of the projects which have been funded do not seem to quite meet this test. In one case, partial support was provided for a university technology research center with the anticipation that the center's research projects would be tied directly to a commercial opportunity.

The corporation's program is too new to evaluate meaningfully its likely impact. It does not plan to quantitatively monitor the impact of its grants on job creation or retention in the state. This may be an oversight insofar as projects tend to be of an applied nature, and job creation data would not be extraordinarily difficult to obtain. The level of state funding for the corporation is good, but an explicit requirement for industrial matching funds would likely provide more leverage for state funding and permit funding of additional projects.

In a state with a declining industrial base, the corporation's emphasis on applied research grants is probably the right choice. The relatively modest total research and development expenditures at the state's research universities suggest that, in spite of the

# PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION KANSAS

Program(s):	Centers Program	of	Exceller	ice and	Research	Matching	Grant	
Year Begun:	1983				्तः त्वत्वविद्यः दृष्टः त्रम्	er gebeurten. Neets als Stree	an a	
<u>Current Annual Funding:</u>			(1983-	і (днавніце) ў Пепа Цілічузі 84) анні (ре	and an ann an Arrange Arrange an Arrange Arrange an Arrange	(1984-8	<b>5)</b>	
a. State appropriation	n Silan (1997) Silan	· ·	\$1.0 mi	lion		\$1.3 mil	lion	
b. Industry		 	\$1.4 mi	lion		\$1 <b>.</b> 4 mill	ion	
<u>Cumulative Funding:</u>	Same as	curr	ent fund	ng.	an a	nin andreas National and		
Program Goals:	Utilizati economi technolo investme firms.	ion c c de ogica ent,	of advanc evelopme 1 innova and imp	ed reseant and tion in too too too too too too too too too to	arch capabil to stimula order to cr duction effi	ities to sti te researc eate jobs, ciency of	mulate ch and induce Kansas	
Administrative Structure:	Advance Departm	d T ient	echnolog of Econo	y Com mic Dev	nission, sta elopment.	affed with	in the	
$= \left\{ \begin{array}{ll} \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{1}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{1}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{1}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle &= \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \left\langle \mathcal{A}_{2}^{(1)} \right\rangle \\ \left\langle$	in a start of the	:					an an Ar	
Program Elements:	Facilities improvement; federal and industrial sponsored research and development; joint funding with industry of applied research leading to economic growth.							
Benefits/Outcomes Claimed	: A signif created of new f	ican due irms	t numbe to expan	of new sion of e	v jobs have xisting firm	been or v s and recru	will be itment	
n agus 1997. Tha an stàigean an t-1999 agus an t-19	na 1994 - Birliy		Na secto as f		n 1944 - Angel Star	e señas de pla-	lan di N¥ − Zittin e	
an shen in an gaaggalas hayo	alian day Ari		ng para di A	an a	n atal A	Nadar (gel 1	or war i	
				e esta a la foi la foi a foi la foi a foi la foi a foi la foi la foi a foi la foi l	i sali nagir		ee Haall Thi	
			3					

The 1983 session of the Kansas legislature allocated \$130,000 each for three "Centers of Excellence." The Centers are: a Center for Bioanalytical Research at the University of Kansas, a Center for Artificial Intelligence and Automated Control Systems at Kansas State University, and a Center for Productivity Enhancement at Wichita State University. Grants to the centers must be matched at least 150 percent by non-state sources. Funding for the 1984-85 year provided a \$140,000 enhancement for each center for a total investment of \$290,000 per center. It is questionable whether these totals are sufficient to achieve "world class" research status for these schools or to make significant new technological breakthroughs likely. A further concentration of resources would allow them to more fully exploit the potential for interaction with the defense-oriented federal research and development in the state and to fully exploit the potential for biotechnological research benefiting the agricultural industry in the state. The centers will serve to enhance the level of university technical expertise to facilitate the application of advanced technologies to existing industry and to portray a favorable image of Kansas as a location for innovative activity. The possibility of appropriating additional funds to develop these or additional centers, promote inter-university linkages, and transfer technology to spin-off firms, might be investigated.

The Research Matching Grant Program is a program of grants for matching industrial funding of applied university research on projects likely to lead to commercial application of the research results and economic ventures in the state. The matching requirement for this program is also 150 percent. State funds in the amount of \$610,000 were allocated for this program during the 1983 session and \$855,000 will be requested for the second year of program operations. The average size of the grant awards was approximately \$40,000. The impact of the Matching Grant Program as of March 1, 1984, was that the addition of fifty employees each was foreseen by two participating firms, while another two firms anticipated opening up new markets in the \$50-\$75 million range. Two other firms were considering relocating to Kansas as a result of program funding for specific research. This type of near-term effect shows promise for adequate returns on continued investment in this program. The level of investment appears to be close to that required for a meaningful program. Increased funding may be indicated if quality proposals are not being funded.
#### PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION MARYLAND

Program(s):

Engineering Research Center (ERC), Center for Advanced Research in Biotechnology (CARB), and Maryland Biotechnology Institute (MBI)

and the state as a second state of a second

\$1.3 million \$1.8 million

(1984-85)

Year Begun:

1983 (ERC and MBI); 1984 (CARB)

(1983-84)

Current Annual Funding:

a. State appropriations (ERC only)

Cumulative Funding:

(1983-84)

\$1.9 million

a. State appropriations (ERC only)

to the second distance is subscribed

Program Goals:

ERC seeks to contribute to the state's leadership in hightechnology evolution through education, by generating new knowledge and through increased service to industry and business in the state and in the region. CARB and MBI aim to consolidate expertise at the university, work in partnership with the state's high-technology industry, and serve as a magnet for attracting new industries, thus providing the state with the scientific component to its commitment to high-technology industries.

自己的 计正确分词 建碱化 的复数形式

University of Maryland-based programs. ERC in College of Engineering; CARB and MBI are separate units.

Program Elements:

Administrative Structure:

University/industry cooperative research (proposed). ERC currently supports generic technology development and technology transfer efforts.

Benefits/Outcomes Claimed: N/A

53

a tha suit ann a suiteach gu a bhu suiteach

discourse database in a

ERC is an organization created within the UMd College of Engineering to extend the technical experience and expertise of the University of Maryland to businesses throughout the state. The Center received an initial appropriation of \$600,000 for its first fiscal year of operation and \$1.3 million and \$1.8 million for the second and third years, respectively. The major thrusts of the ERC are support for a technology transfer/extension program, a planned incubator facility, support for capability expansion in relevant generic technology areas, and support for research partnerships. The research and development programs are not yet fully under way; however, the objective is to build on existing capabilities. Traditional engineering generic technology areas, such as CAD/CAM, robotics, and manufacturing systems, are supported, as well as an effort to couple chemicial engineering to the proposed UMd biotechnology research emphasis through research on fermentation processes. The ERC is neither a technology research center program nor is it an applied research project grant program. It is distinct from the technology research center model in that there is only an incidental concentration on basic and applied research in focused technological areas. ERC does, however, support technology initiatives within existing departments of the University.

A weakness of the present ERC program is the lack of substantial financial commitment from industry as compared with similar programs in other states. There is no formal non-state source matching requirement. Furthermore, it can be questioned whether the present state funding levels and patterns are sufficient to catapult the generic technology programs supported into national leadership stature. The program may be adequate to serve the needs of Maryland's existing traditional manufacturing industry, if the proper linkages are established. It is doubtful if it is large enough to be useful in recruiting new industry or in establishing substantial spin-off activity. The possibility of ERC establishing joint research programs in areas of commercializable technologies with the several federal laboratories in the state is in need of further exploration. The present policy of seeking federal research and development funds only if they facilitate university/industry interaction may be short-sighted. The exploitation of one federal laboratory's resources (the National Bureau of Standards) is the basis for the formation of CARB, and there may also be unexplored opportunities for ERC to also involve itself with a Maryland federal laboratory. The recent announcement of a \$16.7 million NSF Engineering Research Center award may overshadow the perceived weaknesses of the ERC program and greatly enhance ERC's stature and potential for success.

development over time of a leading biotechnology research institution. Early indications are that industry is enthusiastic. One rather obvious shortcoming of the UMd concept from an economic development point of view is the lack of active involvement by Johns Hopkins University in Baltimore, which is considered by many to be "world-class" in its reputation for research in the life sciences. This may be due, in part, to the lack of early state government participation in evolving the concept and committing state resources.

#### Update and Comments

The Engineering Research Center's incubator has been established. Two companies presently reside in the on-campus facility, and negotiations are under way with four more companies. To date, forty-seven applications have been received, thirty for on-campus status and seventeen for affiliate status.

As regards mechanisms to link ERC to Maryland's existing industries, regional technology extension offices are operated in Baltimore, College Park, Gaithersburg, and Frostburg. Each of these offices is staffed by one or more industrially experienced engineers who serve the companies in the region. These engineers respond to companies by providing individual technical advice and problem solving. If the problem requires additional support, then the involvement of a University of Maryland faculty member will be arranged. The ERC will fund up to five days of support per problem. In the short time the program has been operating, over fifty firms have been helped in this manner.

Finally, it should be noted that Johns Hopkins University offers a number of innovative programs and acts as both a resource to industry and a source of continuing technological development. The Johns Hopkins Applied Physics Laboratory, with its 2,700 scientists, engineers, and support staff, engages in applied and basic research related to national defense, space exploration and civilian needs. The Space Telescope Science Institute located on the Homewood Campus of Johns Hopkins will receive and analyze data received from NASA's 95-inch Space Telescope, which will be launched in 1986. Finally, the Francis Scott Key Medical Center under development will include a 40-50 acre biotechnology research park and an upgraded acute care hospital facility. The first tenant in the park dedicated a 33,000 square foot research lab in 1984.

#### PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION NEW YORK

Program(s):	n An Antonio Antonio Antonio Antonio Antonio Antonio Antonio Antonio Antonio	Centers for Advar Development Grants	nced Technology Program	and Research and
sterite <sub>d</sub> a estato L	an a			ander der Streiter für der Sternen der Sternen der Sternen der Ster
Year Begun:		1981	an Alian Angelan (1997) an Alian Angelan Angelan Angelan (1997) an Angelan Angelan Angelan (1997) an Angelan (1997) an	

Current Annual Funding:

	(1983-84) (1984-85)
a. State appropriations	\$2.6 million \$7.5 million
b. Other sources (est.)	\$4.6 million N/A
Cumulative Funding:	(1983-84)
a. State appropriations	\$2.9 million
b. Other sources (est.)	\$4.7 million

#### Program Goals:

To increase and make available to the people of the state the benefits derived from new advances in science, technology and innovation; to strengthen the state's leadership position in technical research and development; to develop an effective and efficient process of technology transfer; and to improve the state's overall economy through the development and strengthening of its advanced technology industrial base.

Administrative Structure:	Science and Technology Foundation, a public corporation
1997年1月1日) 1997年1月1日日本(1997年1月1日年日) 1997年1月1日日本(1997年1月1日年日)	n an
Program Elements:	University/industry/government cooperative research centers and applied research and development grants for university/industry research.
and the stand of the stand of the	de see en private déspersive et services establisées en s
Benefits/Outcomes Claimed:	University/industry interrelationships have developed and some of the projects supported are entering the commercialization phase.

Columbia University - Computers and Information Systems.

south a state of the last of Atl 124.

o Cornell University - Biotechnology in Agriculture.

Polytechnic Institute of New York - Telecommunications.

经生产管理性 医外外的 化合物 网络小门属小子 法部门 化合理器 网络拉尔 人名法德法 化结核合理 医外外部结核炎 化丁基

o SUNY Buffalo - Health Care Instruments and Devices.

o SUNY Stony Brook - Medical Biotechnology.

o

Syracuse University - Computer Applications and Software Engineering.
 University of Rochester - Advanced Optical Technology.

All except one CAT center has met or exceeded the goal of obtaining matching external funds equal to its state appropriation. The CAT which did not attain this goal is being restructured with new leadership. The \$2.5 million first-year state appropriation for the CATs has effectively leveraged \$4.5 million in external funding. Basic state funding has been provided for equipment, faculty, research staff, and graduate students. The earmarked appropriation is used for development of capabilities and for project support.

The program's economic development goal is long-term and essentially "plants the seeds for the future growth of technology-based industries in New York State." As was true of the similar technology center programs in other states, it is impossible to assess the likely impact in New York of state expenditures in terms of job or wealth creation for a cost/benefit comparison. The level of individual center funding is such that it is likely to improve significantly the research and training capabilities of the universities involved; it will not elevate them to the "world class" status necessary for significant spin-off activity if they are not already at least marginally there, as are Cornell and Columbia. Moreover, there is some question as to whether or not targeted expenditures alone can accomplish this objective. However, the leveraging of external funding has so far been encouraging and the tangible evidence of the state's commitment to technology-based industry and the visible research activity is a positive influence on the business climate.

#### PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION NORTH CAROLINA

Program(s):	Biotechnology Center, Research Fund	Microelectronics	Center, Innovation
Year Begun:	1981 - Table - State - State - State - State		
Current Annual Funding:			19 (Norff) (참3) (44) (1) 
	(1983-)	84) 34)	(1984-85)
a. State appropriations	\$7.9 mi	llion	\$10.5 million
b. Other sources	N/A		<b>N/A</b>
Cumulative Funding:	a da an		
	(1983-8	i - En e del Alinge en di Alini 34) - En estato del Alini	i en letter digt de la co California
a. State appropriation	s \$ 48.2 mi	llion	
b. Other sources	\$ 7.7 mil	l <b>lion</b> (Constant Automatic) An addition does not affect	en de la coltrador de la color. En española en marca d
Program Goals:	Part of strategy for: technology firms, f industries, and start-u	recruitment and ostering innovatic ip of new small busi	expansion of new on in traditional ness.
Administrative Structure:	Separately administe with representatives coordination by Nor Technology.	red organizations, from academia and th Carolina Board	each with board d business; overall l of Science and
Program Elements:	Basic research, appl product-development	ied research, and funding.	small amount of
Benefits/Outcomes Claimed:	Over 1,800 new manufacturing firms a period, 1983-84. So have also been attract	jobs created by attracted to state do me research and c ed.	high-technology uring the two-year development firms

North Carolina's approach to research and development programs has been to strengthen research and development in areas perceived to be important to the state's economy at the flagship state research universities, the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and North Carolina State University (Raleigh). The state has also set up independent research centers in microelectronics and biotechnology at RTP which will coordinate and promote research in these technologies within the state.

The microelectronics effort is centered around the Microelectronics Center for North Carolina (MCNC). MCNC both operates its own applied research facilities and works with five participating universities and the Research Triangle Institute to support their educational and/or basic research programs in microelectronics. From its inception in 1981 and through the 1985 fiscal year, MCNC will have received a total of \$47 million in state funds and \$7.7 million from non-state sources. Non-state sources include contractual research from the Semiconductor Research Consortium and support from membership fees paid by six industrial affiliates. MCNC's state funds represent only a portion of what is the largest financial commitment by any state to a single technology. Related state investments in university capital facilities exceed \$20 million. As of December 1984, the MCNC device fabrication facilities had not been completed, pending equipment deliveries, and the in-house research program was not fully operational.

The North Carolina Biotechnology Center, established in 1981, emphasizes coordination, collaboration, and cooperation in research between industry and the state's universities. It also promotes the development of new and existing biotechnology firms. The Biotechnology Center is funded at a much lower level than MCNC; total funding through 1984-85 is \$1.2 million. There is a requirement for funding from non-state sources to equally match the \$500,000 per year state allocation. The Center funds seed grants for university research and provides support for university education and research in much the same way as MCNC. But unlike MCNC, there is no intramural research program. The Biotechnology Center is designed primarily to exploit the existing strengths of North Carolina universities in this field. A recent survey by the National Academy of Sciences rated the graduate programs in the biological sciences at several North Carolina universities among the most effective in the nation. The funding level for the Biotechnology Center is, however, less than that of several other states with biotechnology center program initiatives.

about the long-term effectiveness of this strategy as opposed to alternative strategies based on the revitalization of declining industries or development of capabilities in a broader range of technologies.

#### Update and Comments

The biennial appropriation figures from the 1985 session of the North Carolina state legislature are:

#### - Microelectronics Center of North Carolina

Fiscal Year 1985-1986:		\$16.8 million
Fiscal year 1986-1987:	9 1 - 14	\$12.2 million

#### - North Carolina Biotechnology Center

Fiscal year 1985-1986 Fiscal year 1986-1987 \$7.7 million

\$ 1.5 million (With \$5.0 million pending in program funding.)

#### - Technological Development Authority

Fiscal year 1985-1986

\$ 1.35 million (of which \$500,000 is allocated for the Innovation Research fund.)

Where it may appear that the state has made a greater investment in microelectronics than in biotechnology, the difference in appropriations is due primarily to the capital expenditures involved in MCNC's in-house research capability. In general, commitments to the two initiatives are comparable.

While it is true that both MCNC and NCBC support North Carolina's industrial recruitment efforts, it should be noted that the TDA is intended to foster the development of "native" or indigenous technical or research-based start-up companies. Toward that end, the Innovation Research Fund investments are limited strictly to applied research by private companies which produce proprietary information and marketable products. Sales of the product then provide a royalty back to the IRF for reinvestment.

#### PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION

OHIO

ree erezze en en egen

Program:	Thomas Edison Program	
Year Begun:	1983	en for a sector de la sector de l La sector de la secto
Current Annual Funding:	(1983-85 bienniał)	e jeun geodite i de l
a. State appropriation	(1989-89 Dieminal)	ula i una com y obsi cupicani
b. Non-state	astronaction \$78 million and above a	
and a state of the back	en dela Britania a constante de la populari	ue col aberene.
Cumulative Funding:	Same as Current Funding	a participante de la companya de la Companya de la companya de la company
Program Goals:	To encourage state economic deve technological innovation by fostering co and development efforts involving educational institutions that will lead Ohio.	elopment through operative research businesses and to job creation in
Administrative Structure:	Ohio Department of Development with advisory board composed of repr academic, business, and legislative comm	award funding by esentatives from unities.
Program Elements:	Advanced technology application cente involving joint industry/academic res transfer to mature industry, entrepres and education and training; applie development matching grants.	rs of "excellence" earch, technology neurial assistance, ed research and
Benefits/Outcomes Claimed:	Commitment from non-state sou conservatively estimated to be \$78 millio	rces of <u>funds</u> n.

68

I that and algorithe i define to be adapted to a set of the set

e an heilige her die de melande street beste part begehoer geveelinge were geboer op te service

Through the ATACs program, the state is providing \$23.6 million in matching support for the formation and growth of several technology research, development, and implementation centers located around the state. Six centers were awarded to universities in a proposal competition judged according to criteria that were, in principle, free from political considerations. These centers conform to the technology research center generic model. They are supposed to attain national or international leadership status in their respective technology areas. However, they are also required to strongly emphasize technology transfer to the private sector and to demonstrate how jobs will be created in Ohio. The centers, their affiliations, and their initial funding allocations are:

Ś

\$

\$

Ś

\$

4.1 million

4.1 million

4.1 million

4.1 million

3.1 million

o Institute of Advanced Manufacturing
 Sciences - University of Cincinnati
 o Ohio Welding Research and Development

o Onio weiging Research and Developmen Institute - Ohio State University

- o Cleveland Advanced Manufacturing Program Cleveland State University, Case Western Reserve Universities, Cuyahoga Community College
- Advanced Technology Application Center in Polymers - Case Western Reserve, University of Akron
- o Recombinant Animal Biotechnology Center - Ohio State University, Case Western Reserve University

o Applied Information Technologies Research
 Center - Ohio State University
 \$ 4.1 million

Estimates of the total matching fund commitment from non-state sources for these centers range from \$127 million by the centers themselves to a more conservative \$75 million by the Ohio Department of Development. Matching funds span the gamut of possibilities, including research support, equipment donations, and membership fees. The individual centers plan to become self-supporting over time. As an aside, it is interesting that there is no focus in the ATACs on microelectronics except in an incidental way in the Information Technologies Center at Ohio State.

technology transfer has been stressed. In the near-term, there may be some symbolic value to the program's presence for recruitment and retention of industry. However, the IRFP program can be a useful complement to the ATACs program and can perhaps interact with small business to create jobs in a shorter time frame than the ATACs if it is administered flexibly and promoted with this in mind.

#### Update and Comments

1990 1990 The State appropriation for the 1985-87 biennial is \$34.8 million.

#### PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION PENNSYLVANIA

a Santa Santa

Program:	Ben Franklin Partnership Program	n ·
Year Begun:	1982	n an an an an Arthur Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Ann
Current Annual Funding:	(1983-84)	(1984~85)
a. State appropriations	\$10 million	\$18 million
b. Industry	\$16 million	\$33 million
c. Other	\$12 million	\$22 million
Cumulative Funding:	(1983–84)	(1984-85)
a. State appropriations	\$11 million	\$29 million
b. Industry	\$19 million	\$86 million
Program Goals:	To link private and academic re industry more competitive in place and to spin-off new, smal edge of technological innovation	sources to make traditional the international market Il businesses on the leading
<u>Administrative Structure:</u>	Regional, non-profit corporatio with consortia of representative and labor.	ns with university ties and s from academia, business,
Program Elements:	Joint funding with industry of a and training, entrepreneurial ass capital.	applied research, education istance programs, and seed
Benefits/Outcomes Claimed	(1983–84)	no car e la la engli paratèri ( 1) de malèri di Éri déla Salate
	Number of projects - 219 Number of new firms - 62 Number of new jobs - 352 Number of jobs retained - 72 Number of jobs recruited + 1,150	

an an an air an an Air ann an Airtean an an Ann. An far ionn an ann an Airtean Airtean an Airtean Airtean. Western Pennsylvania Advanced Technology Center -

0

0

based at Carnegie-Mellon University and the University of Pittsburgh; and

Advanced Technology Center of Central Northern Pennsylvania based at the Pennsylvania State University.

In its research and development programs, each Center emphasizes applied research in three or four marketable technology areas related to the perceived strengths and capabilities of its participating universities. Each center has three or four Centers of Excellence such as robotics and computers, CAD/CAM, and sensors. Projects are funded through each Center with identifiable private firms and higher education institutions. The mode of program operation is closest to the applied research project grant model. However, in the present case, projects are administered by the Regional Centers under "umbrella" funding and Centers of Excellence are established under umbrella funding. The projects are packaged by the Center for consideration by the Ben Franklin Board. The Board allocates state funding to the Centers based on the quality of the projects submitted, the amount of matching funds committed, and past performance of each Center in creating jobs, attracting venture capital, and other measures related to job generation.

State funding for the Ben Franklin Partnership began with a 1982-83 start-up allocation of \$1 million, increased to \$10 million for 1983-84, and is \$18 million for 1984-85. The latest appropriation of \$18 million in state funds resulted in a match of over \$55 million from non-state sources for a total of over \$73 million, which is claimed to be the largest total program on an annual basis in the United States. It is also claimed to be the largest leveraged program with its 1:3 state to non-state funding ratio. The governor's budget projections show a steady increase in state funds to \$25 million. If the matching ratio continues to hold, this will result in over a \$100 million annual program when funding levels off. This is an amount equivalent to approximately one-fourth of total university research and development expenditures in the state or, to place it in a national perspective, more than two-thirds of the total budget for engineering research of the National Science Foundation.

From the beginning of the program in March 1983 through May 1984, it is reported that the Centers assisted sixty-seven firms to start-up and forty-three firms to expand, together creating 663 new jobs. This is an encouraging result considering the youth of the program.

and the second second second state of the second second second second second second second second second second

#### Update and Comments

As concerns program outcomes, the following data covers the first 26 months of the program from March 1983 through April 30, 1985.

Number of Projects - 302 Number of new firms - 184 Number of new jobs - 860 Number of firms expanding - 121 Number of job created by expansion - 789

Pennsylvania indicated that the above numbers are not based on projections but are actual figures obtained from individual businesses. Staff of the Ben Franklin Partnership program contact firms directly to validate the numbers.

As regards funding allocation between the four centers, it was noted that their allocations are not influenced by a desire for regional balance.

## PROGRAM SUMMARY DESCRIPTION

#### VIRGINIA SCALE

人民的投资

Program:	Center for Innovative Technology.
Year Begun:	in earl old, ga Dadaagnia (Maanasia) olgunooloine maiylel et baaan maraas. 1984 annaagaal olgaal aabaana yla cayboo bada Cheanas aaaas old on baa
Current Annual Funding:	en al veje belegen de statestade lands an gebene verdeler solderen en e
n an	1 (1983-85) (1983-85) (1983-85)
a. State appropriations	and sub-trainer\$30.3 million and an and the sub-trainer of 200 million and a sub-trainer of 200 million and a s
Cumulative Funding:	Same as Current Funding
Program Goals:	To enhance the research capabilities of many of Virginia's universities and colleges, stimulate these capabilities to be relevant and applied to the technical needs of private industry, and market these capabilities to stimulate increased industry participation in university research in
	Virginia.
Administrative Structure:	Non-profit, non-stock corporation with board appointed by governor. Real property held by a state authority.
Program Elements:	Research institutes consisting of consortia of universities; a headquarters with research facilities, incubator space and graduate education.

<u>Benefits/Outcomes Claimed:</u> Seeks to make state attractive as a home for high-technology enterprise. No effectiveness measures.

(4) Second and the second second of the second s Second s Second se The CIT is not yet fully operational and therefore an assessment of its likely impact on economic development is highly tentative. Nevertheless, it is an interesting and novel approach and the concept itself is worthy of scrutiny.

Although the CIT is a novel approach overall, certain specific features resemble North Carolina's Biotechnology Research Center and Microelectronics Center of North Carolina (MCNC) discussed earlier in this report. Like the Biotechnology Center and MCNC, emphasis is placed on a consortium of universities engaged in research. The organizational difference is that, in theory, CIT works through a more structured (on the university-side), multi-institutional "Research Institute" in each of the four targeted technologies while the Biotechnology Research Center and MCNC operate their own facilities and work informally with participating universities. Each Institute has a resident research director on the campus of the lead institution for that technology. Another distinct difference is that, unlike MCNC, the on-site CIT research facilities will be staffed by persons with permanent faculty (or industrial) connections. The CIT will, therefore, be brokering university expertise, not its own.

The CIT has been funded by the Virginia General Assembly at \$30 million for its first biennium. Approximately \$9 million of this total is provided for the capital facilities of the CIT's headquarters. Most of the remaining funds will be utilized in support of on-campus research, including equipment, laboratory renovation, and Institute administration. The intent is for private sector funds to supplement the operations.

The CIT headquarters will be located in Northern Virginia on the fringe of the Washington, DC, metropolitan area, close to the high-technology firms which have gravitated to that area. The universities will be linked to the CIT through the latest in communications technology. The CIT will market its technological resources to out-of-state firms as well as in-state industry.

The primary stated rationale for the development of the CIT is to make the state more attractive as a home for high-technology enterprise. It is acknowledged that, while strong, Virginia universities are currently not "world class" research institutions and that only in Northern Virginia is there the critical mass of technological infrastructure. As is typical with technology-center type programs, there are no articulated, quantitative

Since the Center for Innovative Technology was just getting under way at the time the data for this project was collected, major advances have since been made. Thus far, three Research Institutes have been created at the University of Virginia (UVA), Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (VPI&SU), and Virginia Commonwealth University. During its first year of operation, CIT has attracted \$3.9 million in industrial matching funds received from forty corporations located throughout Virginia to supplement its own \$3 million appropriation for university research.

In April 1985, the Software Productivity Consortium (SPC), comprised of thirteen of the nation's leading aerospace corporations, announced it intends to co-locate its new facility in Northern Virginia at the Center for Innovative Technology. The Consortium will develop state-of-the-art software and software development techniques to help give the United States long-term superiority in the software field. The technology developed by this private sector venture will serve the defense and intelligence communities.

While Northern Virginia is the only region of the state with a critical mass of technological infrastructure, other areas of Virginia are showing signs of potential growth in the high technology field. The recent selection of Newport News by the U.S. Department of Energy as the site for the Continuous Electron Beam Accelerators Facility (CEBAF) is expected to greatly enhance Southeastern Virginia's high-technology potential. It is anticipated that CEBAF will be instrumental in research in the field of nuclear science, attracting leading scientists from all over the world and providing superior training to graduate students.

#### CONCLUSIONS

This report has attempted to provide an overview of state programs to encourage technological innovation through fostering basic and applied research in relevant technological areas. Many states have incorporated such progams into their economic development strategies. However, it is generally agreed that most localities do not have the technological infrastructure to incubate or accommodate technology-oriented industry on a large scale. Further, such industry will not be the dominant source of jobs nationwide for the forseeable future. Nevertheless, promoting local research and development activity through state initiatives will improve the image of technologically less-developed regions as sites for other innovative economic activity, even if few hightechnology jobs are created.

The two most common types of state research program initiatives are the applied research grant program and the technology research center. These two program types differ in their ability to achieve various economic development objectives. A state's technology-based economic development objectives must be formulated in relation to its individual economic and demographic characteristics as well as its existing technological infrastructure.

The ten assessments of state research initiatives presented herein indicate that these programs fall generally into two categories. Whether the programs contribute to economic development primarily through their symbolic presence or directly create jobs through the technological innovation process, they are likely to improve the quality and the quantity of scientific and engineering manpower training in state universities.

#### REFERENCES

- ABT Associates Inc., Factors Affecting University Spin-off Firm Establishment, Final Report NSF Contract No. PRA-8400688, August 1984.
- Armington, C. and Odle, M., "Sources of Job Growth: A New Look at the Small Business Role, Commentary, National Council for Urban Economic Development, Fall 1982.
- Armington, C. and Odle, M., "Sources of Recent Employment Growth: 1978-1980," prepared for the Second Annual Small Business Research Conference, Bentley College, June 1982.

Azaroff, L.V., "Industry-University Collaboration: How to Make It Work," <u>Research</u> Management, May 1982, pp. 31-34.

Bearse, P.J., "Technology Transfer: Designing a State Strategy," <u>Commentary</u>, National Council for Urban Economic Development, Spring 1984, pp. 19-23.

Birch, D.L., <u>The Job Generation Process</u>, MIT Program on Neighborhood and Regional Change, Cambridge, Massachusetts; 1978.

Birch, D.L., <u>Share of Jobs vs. Share of Job Creation--a Flow Analysis</u>, MIT Program on Neighborhood and Regional Change, Cambridge, Massachusetts, 1983.

Birch, D.L. and MacCraken, S.J., <u>The Role Played by High Technology Firms in Job</u> <u>Creation</u>, MIT Program on Neighborhood and Regional Change, Cambridge, <u>Massachusetts</u>, 1984.

Brady, H., "States Vie for a Slice of the Pie," High Technology, January 1985.

Congressional Budget Office, U.S. Congress, Federal Support for R&D and Innovation, April 1984.

Cornell University, Examples of University - Industry (Government Collaborations, Office of the Vice President for Research and Advanced Studies, Ithaca, NY, August 1984.

Dorfman, N., "Route 128: The Development of a Regional High Technology Economy," Research Policy, Vol. 12, 1983. Malecki, E.J., Federal and Industrial R&D: Locational Structures, Economic Effects and Interrelationships, Final Report NSF Gant PRA-8019861, Department of Geography, University of Oklahoma, October 1983.

Malecki, E.J., "High Technology and Local Economic Development," <u>APA Journal</u>, Summer 1984, pp. 262-269.

National Governors' Association, <u>Technology and Growth:</u> State Initiatives in <u>Technological Innovation</u>, Final Report of the Task Force on Technological Innovation, Washington, D.C., October 1983.

National Science Board, <u>University-Industry Research Relationships</u>: <u>Selected Studies</u>, 1982.

National Science Board, University-Industry Research Relationships: Myths, Realities and Potentials, Fourteenth Annual Report of the National Science Board, October 1982.

National Science Foundation, Academic Science/Engineering R&D Funds Fiscal Year 1983, NSF 84-308, 1984.

Office of Technology Assessment, U.S. Congress, <u>Technology</u>, <u>Innovation and Regional</u> <u>Economic Development Background Papers Census of State Government Initiatives for</u> <u>High Technology Industrial Development</u>, OTA-BP-STU-21, May 1983.

Office of Technology Assessment, U.S. Congress, <u>Technology</u>, <u>Innovation and</u> <u>Regional Economic Development - Background Paper #2</u>: <u>Encouraging High</u> Technology Development, OTA-BP-STI-25, February 1984.

Office of Technology Assessment, U.S. Congress, <u>Technology</u>, <u>Innovation and</u> Regional Economic Development, OTA-STI-238, July 1984.

Peltz, M., and Weiss, M.A., "State and Local Government Roles in Industrial Innovation, APA Journal, Summer 1984, pp. 270-279.

Riche, R.W., Hecker, D.E., and Burgan, J.U., "High Technology Today and Tomorrow: A Small Slice of the Employment Pie, <u>Monthly Labor Review</u>, November 1983, pp. 50-58.

### APPENDIX

# Table A-1Employment of Technological Workers, 1980

	Employed	an a				
State	Persons (16 & over non-agri.)	Engineers and Natural Scientists	Engineers	Technicians and Technologists	Precision Production Occupations	
Alabama	1,511,928	26,752	17,739	24,975	67,754	
Alaska	164,874	5,197	2,344	<b>5,802</b>	3,784	
Arkansas	875,733	9,683	6,114	10,395	38,760	
Arizona	1,113,270	27,185	17,209	27,709	40,033	
California	10,640,405	312,406	213,232	261,012	469,828	
Delaware	262,809	8,053	4,974	8,725	10,306	
Colorado	1,362,017	44,036	24,798	38,985	48,202	
Connecticut	1,482,309	47,306	31,838	34,413	81,774	
Florida	4,002,330	68,272	43,906	78,799	129,705	
Georgia	2,335,835	35,961	21,497	42,856	93,161	
Hawaii	415,181	7,309	3,992	8,597	10,992	
Idaho	383,652	8,475	4,829	7,153	11,391	
Illinois	5,068,428	104,699	68,692	97,183	237,746	
Indiana	2,366,263	41,952	29,920	39,942	125,465	
Iowa	1,304,638	17,558	11,678	18,687	54,818	
Kansas	1,078,741	19,898	13,414	18,950	53,800	
Kentucky	1,388,046	19,065	13,286	18,153	52,418	
Louisiana	1,639,394	31,671	20,861	- A. A. (A <b>31, 931</b>	64,108	
Maine	459,522	6,817	4,330	6,389	22,647	
Maryland	1,946,612	68,044	35,482	59,414	66,051	
Massachusetts	2,674,275	78,298	51,510	64,850	126,207	
Michigan	3,750,732	88,320	63,867	68,913	199,908	
Minnesota	1,885,521	36,064	22,509	43,592	71,784	
Mississippi	937 <b>,2</b> 06	13,180	8,129	13,137	39,550	
Missouri	2,103,907	38,579	25,860	37,658	85,255	
Montana	328,316	5,352	2,452	5,032	8,038	
Nebraska	716,633	8,923	4,822	10,733	26,460	
Nevada	398,566	6,167	3,183	7,540	8,930	
New Hampshire	432,622	12,200	8,604	11,026	24,929	
New Jersey	3,288,302	92,222	55,846	75,223	143,743	

# Table A-2 Technological Workers as a Percentage of Total Employment, 1980

State	Engineers and Natural Scientists	Engineers	Technicians and Technologists	Precision Production Occupations
Alabama	1 <b>.769</b>	1.173	1.651	4.481
Alaska	3.152	1.421	3.519	2.295
Arkansas	1.105	.701	1.187	4.426
Arizona	2.441	1.545	2.488	3.595
California	2.936	2.003	2.453	4.415
Colorado	3.233	1.820	2.862	3.539
Connecticut	3.191	2.147	2.321	5,516
Delaware	3.064	1.892	3.319	3.921
Florida	1.705	1.097	1.968	3.240
Georgia	1.539	.920	1.834	3.988
Hawaii	1.760	.961	2.070	2.647
Idaho	2.209	1.258	1.864	2.969
Illinois	2,065	1.355	1.917	4.690
Indiana	1.772	1.264	1.687	5.302
Iowa	1.345	.895	1.432	4.201
Kansas	1.844	1.243	1.756	4.987
Kentucky	1.373	.957	1.307	3.776
Louisiana	1.931	1.272	1,947	3.910
Maine	1.483	.942	1.390	4.928
Maryland	3.495	1.822	3.052	3.393
Massachusetts	2.927	1.926	2.424	4.719
Michigan	2.354	1.702	1.837	5.329
Minnesota	1.912	1.193	2.311	3.807
Mississippi	1.406	.867	1.401	4.219
Missouri	1.833	1.229	1.789	4.052
Montana	1.630	.746	1.532	2.448
Nebraska	1.245	.672	1.497	3,692
Nevada	1.547	.798	1.891	2.240
New Hampshire	2.820	1.988	2.548	5.762

#### lege til Nori ju

G.

¥.

ò,

ដ

 $\mathcal{O}^{\circ}$ 

Ϋ́β

TAXA STA

	[ adl	e A-2 (continue	ea)	
Technological	Workers as a	Percentage of	Total	Employment, 1980

	на сласти и сласти Солости и сласти и Солости и сласти и с	ngineers and	11 전 2 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Precision Production	
State	Natur	ai scien	LISTS	Engineers	lecnnologists	Occupations
New Jersey	n en ser de la companya de la company	2.804		1.698	2.287	4.371
New Mexico		2.969		1.576	3.009	3.194
New York		2.064		1.257	1.939	4.096
North Carolina	j strač	1.366		.855	1.636	4.811
North Dakota		1.179		.599	1.482	2.329
Ohio		2.148		1.526	1.889	5.301
Oklahoma		1.898		1.135	1.923	4.252
Oregon		1.952		1.102	1.882	3.819
Pennsylvania		2.050		1.371	1.993	4.953
Rhode Island		1.691		1.123	1.656	6.413
South Carolina		1.458		.950	1.911	4.684
South Dakota		.909	ANG LE	.512	1.100	3.032
Tennessee	n. Maanta t	1.699	10-1 C	1.119	1.842	4.568
Texas		2.341		1.520	2.264	4.437
Utah		2.356		1.437	2.622	3,988
Vermont		2.365	NAC -	1.681	2.063	4.290
Virginia		2.716		1.415	2.543	3.588
Washington	a je na st	3.242	ан <sup>200</sup> (Ал	2.185	2.371	4.320
West Virginia		1,503		1.040	1.577	3.942
Wisconsin	20 (1.14 (1.	1.575	NA MARA	1.043	1.777	4.784
Wyoming		2.458		1,339	2.031	2.780
		ан 1. т.			가 있다. 영국 문제가 가 가 가 가 가 다 다 다	n an an an tha an

92

N.C.

## **Table A-1** (continued) Employment of Technological Workers, 1980

n all china tha Balach cair bha Gallainteach chin	Employed Persons (16 & over	Engineers and Natural		<b>Technicians</b> and	Precision Production
State	<u>non-agri.)</u>	Scientists	Engineers	Technologists	Occupations
New Mexico	508,238	15,090	8,011	15,293	16,238
New York	7,440,768	153,621	93,602	144,310	304,822
North Carolina	2,607,925	35,632	22,310	42,691	125,488
North Dakota	272,620	3,216	1,633	4,041	6,351
Ohio	4,558,442	97,929	69,584	86,133	241,656
Oklahoma	1,287,857	24,448	14,630	24,771	45,772
Oregon	1,138,425	22,231	12,553	21,429	43,479
Pennsylvania	4,961,501	101,734	68,046	98,910	245,779
Rhode Island	426,812	7,219	4,795	7,070	27,373
South Carolina	1,319,970	19,250	12,547	25,225	61,835
South Dakota	296,679	2,698	1,519	3,265	8,996
Tennessee	1,914,920	32,538	21,447	35,284	87,487
Texas	6,311,845	147,818	95,967	142,950	280,090
Utah	585,921	13,810	8,425	15,366	23,370
Vermont	227,195	5,374	3,821	4,689	9,748
Virginia	2,348,401	63,785	33,239	59,730	84,267
Washington	1,794,354	58, 183	39,219	42,547	77,524
West Virginia	689,461	10,366	7,177	10,877	27,182
Wisconsin	2,114,473	33,313	22,070	37,581	11,176
Wyoming	217,374	5,345	2,912	4,416	6,044
			$\Sigma_{i}(\vec{x}) = 1 + \frac{1}{2}$		
			1999) - 1		(1803) (1800) (1900) 
			en el la la compañía de la compañía Compañía de la compañía de la compañí		$\label{eq:rescaled} E_{int} = \frac{\sum_{k=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} \sum_{k=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^$
	Source: U.S. Depa	artment of Co	mmerce, Bure	au of the Census	
					100 A.
na Star skal	n Maximum Alexandria				and the second second
	<u>6</u> ,				
and a state of the	anja 4	1.1212	n ng	NAME OF A	
ener i Dener en en Dener 11 gagation		$< N m_{\rm exp} m^3$	n an		
- :					

v.

.

- Rorke, M.G., Bronfman, L.M., and Soderstrom, E.J., <u>Evaluation of the Energy-Related</u> <u>Inventions Program Volume 1: Analysis of Case Studies of Supported Projects</u>, ORNL/CON-92/VI Oak Ridge National Laboratory, February 1983.
- Rosseger, G., The Economics of Production and Innovation, Pergamon Press, Elmsford, New York, 1980.
- Rothwell, R. and Zegveld, W., Industrial Innovation and Public Policy, Greenwood Press, Westport, Connecticut, 1981.
- Shanklin, W.L. and Ryans, J.K., <u>Marketing High Technology</u>, Lexington Books, Lexington, Massachusetts, 1984.
- SRI, <u>Choosing a Future</u>, Prepared by SRI International for Ameritrust Corporation, Chicago, Illinois, March 1984.
- SRI, <u>Innovations in Industrial Competitiveness at the State Level</u>, Prepared by SRI International for the President's Commission on Industrial Competitiveness, October 1984.

Tornatzky, L.G., Eveland, J.D., Boylan, M.G., Hetzner, W.A., Johnson, E.C., Roitman, D., and Schneider, J., <u>The Process of Technological Innovation: Reviewing</u> the Literature, National Science Foundation, Washington, D.C., 1983.

Udell, G.K. and Baker, K.G., How to Assess Before You Invest, Locus Press, 1982.

医白白 医皮肤坏死 医血管医胆管炎

Vaughan, R., <u>State Tax Policy and the Development of Small and New Business</u>, Coalition of Northeastern Governors Policy Research Center, Washington, D.C., May 1983.

Watkins, C.B., <u>State Programs to Encourage the Commercialization of Innovative</u> Technology, National Governors' Association, February 1985.

Wiewel, W., deBettencourt, J.S., and Mier, R., "Planners, Technology, and Economic Growth," APA Journal, Summer 1984, pp. 290-296.

Eveland, J.P., Hetzner, W., and Tornatzky, L., (eds.), <u>Development of University-Industry</u> <u>Cooperative Research Centers: Historical Profiles</u>, National Science Foundation, Washington, D.C., November 1984.

Farrell, K., "High-Tech Highways," Venture, September 1983, pp. 38-50.

General Accounting Office, <u>The Federal Role in Fostering University-Industry</u> <u>Cooperative</u>, GAO/PA D-83-22, Washington, D.C., May 1983.

Harris, C.S., "High Technology Employment and Employment Growth: Considerations of Firm Size, 1976-1980," Business Microdata Project, The Brookings Institute, June 1984.

Harris, C.S., "High Technology Development in Metropolitan Areas," <u>Local Economies in</u> <u>Transition: Policy Realities and Development Potentials</u>, Duke University Press, 1984

Hutt, P.B., "University/Corporate Research Agreements," <u>Technology in</u> Society, Vol. 5, 1983, pp. 107-118.

Johnson, E.C. and Tornatzky, L.G., Cooperative Science: A National Study of University and Industry Researchers: Assessment of the Industry/University Cooperative Research Projects Program, National Science Foundation, Washington, D.C., November 1984.

海棠 网络日本市内市自己的 网络大学科学会学校 计分析性的分析机 化合金

Johnson, E.C., Tornatzky, L.G., and Schlaaf, L.R., <u>Cooperative Science: A National Study of University and Industry Researchers: Case Studies</u>, National Science Foundation, Washington, D.C., November 1984.

Joint Economic Committee, U.S. Congress, Location of High Technology Firms and Regional Economic Development, Washington, D.C., 1982.

Joint Economic Committee, U.S. Congress, <u>Special Study on Economic Change, Volume 3</u> <u>Research and Innovation Developing a Dynamic Nation</u>, Washington, D.C., 1980.

Luger, Michael I., "Does North Carolina's High-Tech Development Program Work?," APA Journal, Summer 1984, pp. 280-289.

Lynn, W.R., and Long, F.A., "University-Industrial Collaboration in Research," Technology in Society, Vol. 4, 1982, pp. 199-212.

#### C. ANNELS AND AND

(a) provide a substrate and the second of the second se

(a) per per and mente a contra contra concerna a grana a transitation a contra cont

(3) A subject to the second of a local of exacts with the mean policy model assessed and the other one interpret to the spectra of the ender theory exacts performed policy and the second and the during OF and the restriction of the spectra performance of the local of the second of the second of the second of the second term and the spectra performance of the second of the local of the second of the second of the second second term and the spectra performance of the second of the second of the second of the second of second of the second performance of the second second of the second performance of the second of the second of the second of the second second of the second performance of the second of the second of the second of the second second of the second performance of the second performance of the second second of the second performance of the second performance of the second of

Sets in the Connection letter with a set interior of any particle part of any part of any of the method of the sets of the

e) Apply an Optimizer and the control optimizer of the application of 600 kinety and 2000 to 500 to 500 kinet and the spectral optimizer and the application of the control application of a solution of the control and applied to 500 to base of the control and the control approximation. The control application of the solution of the application of the control and the application of the control application of the control application of the control and the control approximation. The control application of the control application of the control application and the control application of the state of the control application of the control application of the solution of the control application of the control application of the control application of the solution of the control application of the control application of the control application of the solution of the solution of the control application of the control application of the control application of the solution of the control application. The control application of the control application of the solution of the control application of the control application of the solution of the solution of the solution of the control application. The control application of the solution of the control application of the solution of the

Weike the form Verginity of the new boy one of the active of a proposition of the set of the set

economic development goals associated with the CIT's formation and no established evaluation procedure for determining its impact.

(1) Designed the set of the se

If the problem of geographical remoteness from potential sponsors of research can be overcome, CIT will probably fulfill its primary purpose of assisting industrial recruitment and retention in Virginia. This impact will most likely be confined to Northern Virginia because of its attractiveness to technology-based industry as compared to the areas in which the universities are located, and this is the principal weakness of the concept. Small business interaction and new firm creation beyond the incubator facilities planned initially at the headquarters and, later, on the university campuses, as well as significant involvement with the federal research and development installations in the state are important challenges facing the CIT and will require attention. The chief advantage of the CIT concept over approaches used in some other states is that it provides a means to collect and focus university strengths in several generic technology areas.

#### Update and Comments

Although Virginia's manufacturing employment increased by 6.8 percent from 1976 -1981 versus a national rate of 6.9 percent, this relationship is not upheld when other time periods are used. According to the Virginia Department of Economic Development, Virginia has traditionally outpaced the national average. From 1970-1984 Virginia's manufacturing employment increased 14.8 percent compared to a U.S. figure of .2 percent.

internet and the second second second second

te na haa dhi edha quaradak. Alaabkaasii med

In addition, while the State of Virginia ranks twenty-sixth in terms of high technology employment as a fraction of total non-agricultural employment, the Northern Virginia area was ranked by <u>Forbes</u> magazine in June 1984 as having the third largest concentration of high technology companies and plants in the nation behind Silicon Valley, California, and Route 128, Boston.

81

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT VIRGINIA

把手了了这些话,就了这个这份

Virginia's ranking ranges from sixteenth to twenty-fourth in the number of workers employed in high-technology industry, depending on the definition of these industries used. It ranks twenty-sixth when high-technology employment as a fraction of total nonagricultural employment is calculated. It ranks seventh in the amount of federal research and development expenditures, with about half of this amount attributed to the federal laboratories in the state. University research as a fraction of personal income is below the national average. Virginia is only moderately industrialized with 15 percent of its workers employed in manufacturing. Manufacturing employment increased 6.8 percent during the 1976-81 base reference period, very close to the national average of 6.9 percent.

In 1984, as a result of a gubernatorial initiative, Virginia formed the Center for Innovative Technology (CIT), a non-profit, non-stock corporation which is primarily concerned with organizing on-campus research programs between Virginia's universities and industry. The CIT Board of Directors is appointed by the governor, and its real property is held by a new state authority with the power to issue tax-exempt bonds.

The research mission of the CIT is to enhance the research capabilities of Virginia's research universities and to stimulate these capabilities to be relevant to the technical needs of private industry. As such, it essentially follows the technology center model of state program initiatives. The center also seeks to market the research capabilities of the state's universities to foster increased industry participation in university research. Initially, the CIT will focus on research in biotechnology, computer-aided engineering, information technology and material sciences. The primary institutions involved are the University of Virginia (UVA), Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (VPI& SU), Virginia Commonwealth University (VCU), George Mason University (GMU), and the College of William and Mary. The CIT will have as its secondary missions assisting the development of emerging technology-based firms and meeting the part-time graduate education needs of industry.

a a complete al major de commençaise dinadoração desta comente dem tama a comenta da Amente de seconde de la candidade e esplectivação de 1993.

> et estat at for a tere e 200 e presar a sur a teres e 184 estat de la set pare 196 estat de la sarre e pare de 190 estat de par sarre a set de caractere e 189

Polytopa Auto odlazo et ana ovo attor anačeno o attori o attori og attoro ang gona odgano debogoto attori polato nas moleco, kalo de De Pao Ero, dile Pao e anale attogogan contore ficas ecentinas editiente da atta atta fatta.

ula major da Europe, alla ante e betragon or colour parmene la jorne po un d'un chair chair. 19 europe ara est buiemerea by e usaire processional buicceae 이 가슴 것 같은 문제가 한 것이 가슴 가슴이 가슴이 가슴 가슴 가슴 가슴 가슴 가슴 가슴 가슴 가 가셨다.

Technology Center claims that, based on its projections, the projects supported during the 1983-84 year will in four years create eighty companies, create 5,600 jobs, and save 2,200 jobs. It is difficult to assess the validity of these kinds of claims; moreover, it is not in the short-term self-interest of the Center to provide conservative estimates. In fact, the casual connection between a job or firm created or saved and the existence of a Center's programs is often impossible to determine with any degree of certainty. However, even if the estimates are somewhat inflated, they remain impressive. Funding allocations between the four Centers are not equal, and some have suggested that they would be even less equal if there was not some unacknowledged attempt at regional balance.

The Advanced Technology Centers exploit the existing strengths of the state's universities for applied research in the various emphasized technology areas by stimulating interaction with the private sector. The research universities associated with each Center are already among the nation's leaders in key technologies. At least one (Carnegie-Mellon) and possibly others have a world class reputation for basic research in technological areas that are readily exploitable. To enhance the capabilities of its research universities, Pennsylvania has established technology centers of excellence, supported through identified private sector/university projects within each center of excellence. The program differs from the applied research project grant programs in other states not only in scale but, in most cases, in the degree of emphasis on applied research directly leading to jobs. Pennsylvania's approach is both near- and long-term and geared to accountability and the bottom line. Overall, the Ben Franklin Partnership Advanced Technology Centers program has what seems to be the proper scope, objectives, and organizational implementation for a state with an established technological infrastructure, strong universities, and a diversified, but declining industrial base. The funding level is large enough to have a significant impact on economic development. The Pennsylvania program rightly serves as a model for imitation by states with similar characteristics. As long as basic research in the state's universities retains its vitality, there is no reason to be concerned over its near-term focus, and the state of a comparation of the state of spectra costs (parts) of the parts of the state of the

abelangka an kiin 1900 a dheeginaa baala na anna na sharar dalaa ahaa bir na ah ee ah ee ah ah ah sharar baar Ta' alaalay waxaalaan ahiin ahiin ahiin ah iyo ja meena ee da saadada ka dalaa ka waxaa ka ahiin ah sharar ahii

a jaangaa kati

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICELASE 化学验验器经常和现在分词等的模型

Pennsylvania ranks eighth in employment in high-technology industry under the stringent, Group II definition and seventh under the Group I and III definitions. Due to the diluting effect of its relatively large population, it sinks to twenty-first for Group I, twentieth for Group II, and twenty-second for Group III when employment as a fraction of total non-agricultural employment is considered. Pennsylvania ranks fourth in industrial research and development and eighth in total federal research and development spending (about half of the industrial amount). Its university research and development spending as a fraction of personal income is close to the national average. Manufacturing, which accounts for about 22 percent of total employment in this highly industrialized state, declined almost 3 percent during the 1976-81 base reference period. The declining industrial economy of the Western Pennsylvania/Pittsburgh area was one of the mid-American regional economies studied by SRI for Ameritrust (SRI 1984a).

The major thrust of Pennsylvania's technology-based economic development strategy is provided by the Ben Franklin Partnership Advanced Technology Initiatives Program begun in March 1983. The Partnership is managed by the 15-member Ben Franklin Board, which includes private sector, small business, education, labor, and legislative representation. The Board approves all grants made under the programs.

ā.

The largest of the Ben Franklin programs is the Challenge Grants/Advanced Technology Centers program. Four regional centers have been established under this program, representing consortia of research universities and other higher education institutions, and private sector, labor, and economic development groups. Each Center administers a number of joint research and development project efforts. Matching of state funds on a one-to-one basis from non-state sources is required. The Centers are:

Northeast Tier Advanced Technology Center based at Lehigh University;

0

Ο

Advanced Technology Center of South Eastern Pennsylvania based at the University Science Center, which includes the University of Pennsylvania, Drexel University and Temple University; a dan ta'i waxa alabasi

#### where there is also and we with 2001 with the constance, type wester and
If targeted money alone will accomplish it, the handsome level of funding for the ATACs will elevate those participating institutions, which already have a credible level of activity, into international prominence for targeted technology. The real question is whether funds targeted to specific areas can generate the overall institutional prestige to attract the personnel to achieve world class status in the specific areas. To give some idea of the likely impact of funding levels on the order of \$10 million per center, the Ohio Welding Research and Development Institute ATAC can be used as a benchmark. The Institute is an outgrowth of its predecessor, the Center for Welding Research which was founded in 1980 with an NSF grant from the University-Industry Cooperative Research Centers program. The Center for Welding Research had some success, but its funding level was quite modest compared to its ATAC successor. The original Center had first-year NSF funding of \$265,000 and industrial contributions (from membership fees) of \$330,000, less than one-tenth of the present center's two-year budget. The funding of individual ATACs averaged more than three times the funding for New York's individual Centers for Advanced Technology, which they closely resemble.

and the second second second

The other major Edison research and development initiative, the IRFP program, consists of two programs. One is a program of university/industry directed basic or applied research grants with a \$50,000 ceiling. The remaining program is a seed capital program of "advanced applied research" which leans toward the "D" in research and development. Both programs require at least a 1:1 match from industrial sponsors that are Ohio firms. The potential resource pool for these programs is close to \$18 million for the 1983-85 biennium. As of December 1984, \$1.4 million in state funds had been committed to grants with industrial matching fund commitments of \$2.6 million.

网络马马属 计分子输出 医白色的 网络白色的 化分子 化分子

Ohio's program is too new to meaningfully evaluate in terms of the output measures that Pennsylvania uses, but the state and matching funds committed are encouraging. Ohio has elected to strike a balance between technology centers, applied research project grants and technology transfer activities. A technology research center approach on the scale of Ohio's can strengthen the universities, but there may be danger in placing excessive emphasis on it in a state with a declining industrial base. There is an immediate need in Ohio to create and retain jobs through applied research and to train workers for them. The tangible benefits in terms of products in the marketplace and job creation from the Edison ATACs are likely to be mid- to long-term, even though

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT OHIO

Ohio is ranked eleventh in high-technology industry under the strict Group II definition. Its ranking increases to fourth and eighth for the Group I and Group III definitions, respectively. In terms of fraction of non-agricultural workers employed in these industries, Ohio drops to twenty-ninth using the Group I definition and to tenth and twenty-first using the Group I and III definitions. The lower ranking in these relative terms is due to the diluting effect of a large population. The fraction of workers employed in manufacturing industries is almost 24 percent, and during the 1976-81 base reference period Ohio suffered a 4.8 percent decline in such employment, second only to Michigan and Illinois among industrialized states. Ohio can be considered almost a classic example of an industrial state with a declining traditional industrial base. Its economy is profiled in the SRI Ameritrust report (SRI 1984a). Ohio ranks eleventh in federal research and development expenditures. Industrial research and development is about one and one-half times federal research and development. University research and development as a fraction of state personal income is less than the national average.

Ohio's economy is similar to that of its neighbor, Pennsylvania, although Ohio's decline is somewhat more severe. In 1983, Ohio initiated a program dubbed the "Thomas Alva Edison Partnership Program" that at first glance seems imitative of Pennsylvania's Ben Franklin Partnership Program. In fact, although there are similarities, there is little imitation beyond use of a famous name. The major component of Ohio's program, the Advanced Technology Application Centers (ATACs), shares more in common with New York's Centers for Advanced Technology than with Pennsylvania's Advanced Technology Centers.

The Edison program operates through the Ohio Department of Development and has an advisory board appointed by the governor. The program is comprised of three separate initiatives. In addition to the ATACs, there is an Innovative Research Financing Program (IRFP) and a Search for Innovative Technology Program (Search). The ATACs and IRFP programs are research and development programs while the Search program is a technology brokering/transfer activity. Total funding for the Edison Program for its first biennium of operation, ending in June 1985, is \$32.4 million.

(a) Setting a graphical sector and the construction of the setting of the setting of the setting of the setting of the set of the

North Complete Physical angle Dataset
 North Complete Physical and States and States
 North Complete Physical and States
 North Complete Physical and States
 North Complete Physical and States

skalt koleman over kommunikarity odstati koleman karniselty odstati se stati oga ver et skalt e stati oga ver rejiktust na soletenset fer det fersenset for enkener oga oga oga o

Alexandre et las mental per Color de Cara des marco a georales en entre alexandre como et la base oracidades and acciperator de las que de cara tenante en entre la des catero e cara de transver de facoro de la como de la seconda de la como en el de caracteria. Alexandre catero e cardidades en entre de la como de la seconda de la como en el de la caracteria.

Linger Contribution of the contribution of the Line CMC properties of the contribution of the second properties of the contribution of the cont

S.A

In addition to MCNC and the Biotechnology Center, which both could be classified as variants of the technology research center generic program type, North Carolina has a host of other programs related to technology-based economic development. One other noteworthy effort is the North Carolina Technological Development Authority which seeks to create new jobs by stimulating the development of new and existing small businesses through seed capital and incubator facilities. There is, in North Carolina, no program which could accurately be described as an applied research project grant program, although such applied research could, in principle, be carried out under the auspices of any of the aforementioned programs. It would seem that establishing a program with this dedicated thrust could prove to be a valuable addition to the present efforts, especially if the technology transfer aspects were emphasized.

Theoretically, the overall coordination of the existing programs from an economic development strategy viewpoint is masterminded by the North Carolina Board of Science and Technology, but in reality, this body does not seem to have the resources or authority to assume full command. Hence, the implementation of an optimal grand strategy based on concepts of maximizing return on investment with fixed resources has not been given serious attention.

The MCNC and the Biotechnology Center programs are too new to meaningfully evaluate their impact in terms of tangible benefits to the state. However, the list of firms recently attracted to North Carolina includes several with potentially close ties to the two centers' research programs. During 1983, high-technology relocations yielded 1,800 new jobs. It is obvious that the glamour and prestige associated with the launching of an enterprise of the magnitude of MCNC will attract at least a few firms. The ultimate success of MCNC and the Biotechnology Center hinges on their university research relationships. The states research universities enjoy excellent reputations in selected areas of science and technology. A few are perhaps on the threshold of being considered "world class," but some knowledgeable persons have expressed reservations about the likelihood of technological breakthroughs (as opposed to incremental improvements) leading to significant spin-off activity from either the university research efforts or those of MCNC. If these opinions are correct, then huge investments in statesponsored research, particularly in microelectronics, could be regarded as an activity whose most useful purpose is to bolster recruitment efforts. This raises some questions

### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT NORTH CAROLINA

Research Triangle Park (RTP) in North Carolina has received considerable attention for its increasing concentration of technology-based industry and research and development laboratories. In spite of the concentration of technology in the Research Triangle Park area, the state as a whole has yet to approach the level of technologyrelated industry in the more established technology areas. North Carolina's ranking in absolute level of high-technology employment ranges from fourteenth to sixteenth depending on the definition of "high technology" used. When compared to other states based on the fraction of employment in technology-based industry, its ranking ranges from nineteenth to thirty-first. Federal research and development expenditures in this tenth most populous state are twenty-fourth in the nation; university research and development expenditures are one-sixth of those in California (although approximately the same as California when compared relative to personal income) but one-half of the relative amount in Massachusetts. North Carolina's percentage of workers employed in manufacturing is 28 percent, the highest in the nation. Manufacturing employment increased almost 9 percent during the 1976-1981 base reference period, somewhat above the national average of 7 percent. It is commonly acknowledged, however, that the textile industry, which remains the largest single source of manufacturing employment in the state, is in decline.

a sector central and an

North Carolina's strategy for technology-based economic development and for increasing the research and development portion of the technological infrastructure needed to make it possible is one of the most ambitious of any state. The motivation behind this effort has however, been questioned, and these questions have been raised in at least one formal article (Luger 1984). The basis for this criticism is that in spite of the fact that North Carolina's stated development goals involve a balanced strategy of industrial recruitment, retention, expansion and stabilization, and of new firm creation, industrial recruitment is seemingly the most heavily emphasized. It is further alleged (Luger 1984) that recruitment is the only area in which there has been much success, and that this has resulted in an overdependence on branch plant relocation. The rate of growth from this source has begun to slow, and the cost effectiveness of this strategy is now questionable. In addition, there are concerns about long-term stability, regional disparities and manpower shortages.

#### a service dimension where the state of the control of the state of the line of the state of the

The CAT's might also be criticized for the lack of inter-institutional linkages between research universities. Only one Center emphasizes this kind of research cooperation as an important element of its program. Only limited attention has been given to spin-off type technology transfer activities, a sharp contrast to the activities at Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, also in New York State. At Rensselaer, the state is participating in the support of a Center for Industrial Innovation.

The Research and Development Grants Program has funded twenty-one projects in the \$20,000 to \$50,000 range. These projects were selected from seventy-four full proposals after a preliminary submission of 450 pre-proposals. During the most recent grant period, eight of the nine projects funded had an industrial match. Of the twelve projects funded in the previous period, three have been commercialized and six others show promise. The program attempts to refer unsuccessful applicants to industrial funding sources. There are no available statistics of the program's impact on job creation. This program is more closely tied to near-term economic development objectives than the CAT program, and as such, it is more directly comparable to the Ben Franklin Partnership Challenge Grant program in Pennsylvania which channels joint university/industry applied research and development through regional "Advanced Technology Centers." Compared to Pennsylvania, New York's Research and Development Grants program appears smaller than desirable to achieve significant economic impact especially since New York, like Pennsylvania, has seen a decline in manufacturing employment.

pan ne prazi 2019 por specie na refere na branch produces i 2010 por serie se na serie se prior de na presente serie a serie presente a consideration de la serie de serie de serie de serie de la serie de na presente serie a la presente production de la serie de serie de serie de la serie de serie de serie de na presente serie de presente presente de la serie de la serie de serie de serie de serie de serie de serie de na presente serie de presente presente de la serie de la serie de serie de serie de serie de serie de serie de na presente serie de serie de serie de la serie de la serie de la serie de s presente serie de serie de serie de la serie de la serie de la serie de s presente serie de serie serie de s

1809-0372-018

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT NEW YORK

New York ranks second in high-technology employment under the Group II and Group III definitions and third under the Group I definition. However, its ranking ranges from fifteenth to twenty-fifth when high-technology employment relative to total non-agricultural employment is considered. It is fifth in federal research and development expenditures, third in industry-funded research and development (about twice the federal expenditures) and second in university research and development. These rankings drop severely when considered as a fraction of personal income. Therefore, New York's relatively high ranking in absolute statistics is primarily due to its large population base. Manufacturing, which employs 18 percent of its workers, declined slightly in employment levels during the 1976-81 base reference period. It would appear that the state has a large technological infrastructure which is diluted by its large population and that its traditional industrial base is declining. An optimal, research and development-based, technological innovation development strategy should take these factors into consideration.

State research and development-related programs in New York State include the Centers for Advanced Technology Program (CAT), a program for support of cooperative research and development centers formed by a partnership among universities, private industry, and government, and the Research and Development Grants program, a program for support of university and not-for-profit organization applied research projects with commercialization potential conducted in cooperation with industry. These programs are essentially a technology research center program and an applied research grant type program, respectively. Both are administered by the New York State Science and Technology Foundation. A seed capital financing program is also administered by the Foundation.

The Centers for Advanced Technology program is the recipient of by far the largest share of the funding, a total of \$9.5 million through fiscal year 1984. Seven CAT grants were awarded to public and private universities in the state on the basis of an RFP solicitation to develop a center in one of seven targeted technology areas. The CATs, all of which were placed in operation by February 1984, are as follows:

In addition to these independent programs, Johns Hopkins has established a Center for Advanced Studies at the Shady Grove Life Sciences Center. The center is designed primarily to serve the graduate, postgraduate, and professional educational needs of Montgomery County's high-technology population. Educational offerings at the Center will include masters degree programs, and credit and non-credit courses, programs, seminars, and colloquia in areas such as health policy, materials sciences, and engineering, molecular genetics, occupational stress, environmental engineering, communications technology, and toxicology.

e se consecte de la la este la constanta da servición de la seconda de la constance da consecta de seconda de s

line en altre de la completa de la completa des provisions en presente de la completa de la completa de la comp

and the final cards and without the probability probability of the spectra for the probability of the second c

(a) a strong ha services providence of the fill of the service provides the service of the services of the

CARB was formed by the University in partnership with the National Bureau of Standards (NBS) and Montgomery County. It is located along the I-270 corridor where many of the county's 100 major biotech research and development facilities are located, the highest concentration of such facilities in the nation. The CARB will be located on a site donated by the county in the corridor's Shady Grove Life Science Center. The new center will combine the unique technical resources of NBS and UMd to meet corporate needs in biotechnology, biomolecular engineering, analytical chemistry and other related fields. Participation from industrial firms, as well as other universities and organizations, will be encouraged. CARB will involve all of the University's campuses and NBS in an attempt to develop a world-class center for the determination and analysis of macromolecules. CARB as a technology center will complement and be a sister organization to the University's three campus technology centers organized as the Maryland Biotechnology Institute and will be located at the College Park, Baltimore, and Baltimore County campuses.

The University has committed its internal resources to the CARB projects and has received a commitment of state funding at an initial level of \$4.5 million per year (primarily for staff) for all four Centers. CARB will be administered under the aegis of a board appointed by NBS and UMd and will include one or more representatives from business and county government. CARB will be staffed by permanent scientific professionals, UMd personnel with joint appointments, and NBS employees. Many of the details concerning CARB's implementation have yet to be resolved. CARB, like the other Centers, will be administratively distinct from the University academic units permitting "arm's length" arrangements. Construction of a building planned to house state-of-the-art research equipment and facilities and an incubator will begin in 1985. The building will be financed by a bond issue; CARB will lease and eventually purchase it.

the second s

The University of Maryland is not currently ranked among the nation's top fifty universities in terms of research and development expenditures in areas related to biotechnology, although it has attained prominence in certain specialized areas. In the past, there has not been a strong entrepreneurial culture at the University, and there has been negligible spin-off activity. The unique partnership of CARB and the establishment of the campus Centers can, together with strong state and industrial support, permit the

enderse sal an an energy of the second states

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT MARYLAND

经营销税 计行行变态 法接款的 马克 医胎儿的

Maryland's rankings in level of high-technology employment range from nineteenth to twenty-second, depending upon which "Group" definition of high-technology employment is applied. Considering high-technology employment as a percentage of total non-agricultural employment has a slight negative impact on Maryland's rankings. In these relative terms, the state ranks from eighteenth to thirtieth. Federal research and development expenditures in Maryland are the second highest in the nation. This is primarily because of the federal research and development laboratories located there. Maryland is tied with Massachusetts for first place in university research and development as a fraction of personal income. The state's economy is not heavily industrialized; only 12 percent of Maryland workers are employed in the manufacturing sector. Manufacturing employment declined moderately during the 1976-81 base reference period.

Maryland's research and development programs with significant economic development implications are centered around the University of Maryland (UMd). These programs are the Engineering Research Center (ERC) and the Maryland Biotechnology Institute (MBI) of which the Center for Advanced Research in Biotechnology or CARB is the centerpiece. ERC is administered through the UMd College of Engineering; MBI and CARB are separate administrative units. These programs are all fairly new; ERC and MBI were established in 1983 and CARB was announced in early 1984. The University is also involved in the development of a new research park near its suburban Washington, D.C., College Park main campus. Due to the newness of these programs, it is difficult to evaluate anything but their potential contribution to economic development. The research park, however, has recently attracted a major new federally funded computer research activity, and was seriously considered although not chosen for a significant software research center, which was subsequently awarded to Carnegie-Mellon University in Pennsylvania. The focus of the present assessment is on ERC and CARB because they are novel in concept and may have some features worthy of replication in other states.

nersel per done déloid féromalisais, enurétaiget asserbit, par la notaur (CSS) part Update and Comments seu all'étér mérie Dia chère aussi d'addit "chardités di bustiere dé ancher contraction des august d'acteurs actions actions d'adait d'acteurs d'adaits seus

The matching requirement for the research matching grant program was changed from 150 percent to 100 percent in 1984-1985.

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT

#### KANSAS

Kansas ranks eighteenth among the states in high-technology employment using the stringent Group II definition. However, using the same definition, its ranking increases to ninth in high-technology employment as a fraction of total non-agricultural employment. Manufacturing employment in Kansas increased almost 14 percent during the five-year base reference period ending in 1981. Kansas ranks sixteenth in the percentage of workers employed in manufacturing. In federal research and development expenditures (mostly from defense) as a fraction of personal income it ranks eighth, but its university research expenditures relative to personal income are well below the national average.

Based on the above economic profile, the optimum high-technology development strategy for Kansas would appear to be a vigorous one, emphasizing strengthening of university research and development and attempting to exploit the infrastructure created by the federal research and development. Kansas has put into place a technology-based economic development program, but it may not be taking full advantage of the potential offered by the state's resources.

The Kansas technology-based economic development programs are the Centers of Excellence Program and the Research Matching Grant program. The names convey their obvious relationships to the generic program types described in this report. Both programs were begun in 1983 and are administered by the Kansas Advanced Technology Commission. They are viewed as investments in university/industry research which will yield a dividend of several hundred new jobs within the first two to three years. It is planned that the jobs will be primarily in the areas of agricultural machinery, aviation, electronics, pharmaceuticals, robotics, telecommunications, and oil recovery. These jobs will, according to development officials, be created through industrial expansion, relocation, and new firm creation. The Centers of Excellence will, in concept, have an impact on existing industry through the application of new technologies; other projects will expand the demand for Kansas produced goods.

excellent reputations of institutions like Purdue and the presence of established university technology centers, the creation of additional technology centers might be considered. The absence of significant federal research and development investment makes this even more important as a source of basic research in new technologies.

#### Update and Comments.

Funding for the corporation reached \$40 million in 1985.

As regards efforts to evaluate performance, the corporation is actively monitoring each of its projects to assure that adequate resources are being devoted to research and development and the transition of the output products, processes, and services to the marketplace. This monitoring also includes a comprehensive analysis of the impact of 1) the leveraging of state funds with private funds and 2) the number of jobs created within the state.

Early figures gathered in this monitoring effort reveal that present planning by the principal investigators of the funded projects to date exhibits a leveraging ratio of CST funds to other fund expenditures in excess of 20-1 during the next three to five years. Although specific external/internal fund matching ratios are not mandated in this program, every effort is made to achieve a proper balance in each program at the earliest possible time, and experience to date indicates that this has been effective.

len Balan eta alemaniaren elleraria en legerraria errentzen errentzen errentzen errentzen errentzen errentzen e Errentzen e

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT INDIANA

Indiana's ranking in the number of workers employed in high-technology industry ranges from eleventh to thirteenth according to the various high-technology group definitions adopted in this report. Its moderately high ranking does not drastically change when considered on the basis of the high-technology fraction of total non-agricultural employment; these relative rankings range from sixth to fourteenth. Federal research and development expenditures in Indiana are twenty-fourth in the nation; industrial expenditures are somewhat larger than average and are approximately five times federal research and development expenditures. University research and development as a fraction of personal income is slightly below the national average. Indiana is highly industrialized with approximately 25 percent of its workers employed in manufacturing, the fifth highest percentage total in the nation. However, manufacturing employment declined almost 5 percent during the 1976-81 base reference period. Indiana was one of the midwestern states studied by SRI for the Ameritrust Corporation (SRI 1984), and some further insights into its economy can be found in their report.

Indiana's program to promote economic development through technological innovation is conducted under the auspices of the Corporation for Science and Technology (CST), a private, not-for-profit corporation. CST was formed in 1983 to strengthen Indiana's economy through the promotion of research and development ventures involving technology transfer from research and development labs into commercially viable products, processes, or services. It was established to identify scientific and technological problems and opportunities, and to fund proposals addressing them. Funding emphasis is given to applied projects rather than to basic research. The corporation provides grants, enters into contracts, and engages in joint ventures, surveys, seminars, workshops, and other activities. The corporation's professional staff is supplemented by several advisory committees for targeted technologies. These targeted technologies are:

- o Advanced Materials;
- o Artifical Intelligence;

o Agricultural Genetics and Technology;

Automated Manufacturing;

linderse in anternation La sual assest redeat for the fellik from spectrometry of the destriction of

Figure 1. And the structure of the control of the structure of the stru

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT CALIFORNIA

California is the nation's high-tech leader. It ranks first in total employment in high-technology industry under all three high-tech definitions. On the basis of percentage of non-agricultural employment in each of these three groups of industries, its rankings are all among the top ten. It is first in federal research and development expenditures, federal laboratory research and development expenditures, total research and development expenditures. It is second in industrial research and development expenditures. Manufacturing employment increased almost 32 percent during the 1976-81 reference period to a moderately high 17 percent of all workers.

The primary state research and development program in California is the MICRO program of applied research project grants, established in 1981. The program provides state matching funds for industry support of University of California (UC) projects in microelectronics and related technologies "that will be at the cutting edge of technology and may lead to products several years in the future." Fellowships for graduate students are also available in addition to student research support budgeted in the projects. The MICRO program has a policy advisory board which includes representation from industry, state government, and the University. An executive committee with representatives from five of the UC campuses administers the program.

During the 1983-84 year, approximately \$4.2 million in state funds attracted \$6.8 million in industrial funding, a positive outcome. The aims of the program in terms of economic development objectives are long term; immediate job creation has not been an issue and no statistics relating to the impact of this relatively new program on jobs is available. The success stories from the university side tend to relate to establishment of closer ties with industry, improved facilities, and better training of students. This program probably fits most easily into the applied research project grant program category, but the research goals and time frame approach those of basic research; the projects tend to be oriented in that direction.

#### Update and Comments

Cumulative funding for the Engineering Excellence Center reached \$54 million in 1984-85, with \$27.8 million in state appropriations, \$18.4 million in industry contributions, and \$7.8 million in other contributions. Externally funded research in the ASU College of Engineering thus increased ten-fold during the first five years. It reached more than \$10 million in awards during 1984-1985.

#### PROGRAM ASSESSMENT ARIZONA

Arizona ranks twelfth in employment in high-technology industry under the Group II strict definition of these industries. It drops to twenty-fourth when the definition is more liberal, encompassing industries with a high proportion of scientific and technical workers (as opposed to high research and development expenditures). When based on the percentage of non-agricultural workers employed in these fields, its ranking rises to third under the strict definition and eighteenth under the liberal definition. Arizona's high-technology growth rate as a percentage of total employment growth under the strict definition is the nation's fourth most rapid. The percentage increase in manufacturing employment for the 1976-81 base reference period is 52 percent, highest in the nation, although the percentage of workers employed in manufacturing is still fairly low at 13 percent. Arizona ranks twenty-fourth among the states in federal research and development expenditures but its university research and development expenditures as a percentage of personal income is well above the national average. Clearly, Arizona is an emerging high-technology state.

Arizona was one of the first states to put into place a research and developmentbased high-technology economic development plan. Its five-year plan was to create a Center for Engineering Excellence at Arizona State University (ASU) in Tempe, Arizona, outside of Phoenix. The plan called for a total of \$32 million to be invested over a fiveyear period. The program, as it was originally planned, required approximately \$19.5 million from state appropriation (primarily for buildings), \$8.5 million from private sources, and \$3 million from federally-sponsored research programs. The purpose of the center was to assist ASU in achieving national leadership in solid-state electronics, computers and computer science, and computer-aided processes. National prominence was sought in energy systems, transportation systems, and thermosciences. This can best be described as a plan to create technology centers for <u>basic</u> research in several areas.

ecose, besce

Actual funding for the center through the first four years of the program totaled \$38 million. Private funds in excess of \$15 million exceeded the original goal of \$8.5 million. Externally funded research in the ASU College of Engineering increased five-

# . DVD-DARGEA

#### 

and a second second of the second galaxies and the anti-second second second second second second second second and the second interester de la constance de l the end at the product of the second state of the state of the second state of the second state of the second state and the company of the contract of the second states of the second state <u>na ang kanangana panangan kanangan kanangan kanangan kanang kanang kanang kanang kanang kanang kanang kanang k</u> and an and an an an angle of the second s gengekaansen die en opgelike selectiese is die enter wordt die enter staat die 1920 van die 1920 van die 1920 v etters des sits alexanders detaille territories des sons d'outres estandis and d'una et outres autres et generalezza de la contra de la contra de la compactiencia de la contra de la contra de la contra de la contra d e prigera en pris estrution en espectador en enconsiderá e a construcción de la construcción de la construcción e substate adal participations de la company a contra la company de la contra de la contra de la contra de la c tere environmente de la completa de completa de la completa de la completa de la completa de la completa de enversence) de solitionisti courrentes en constituires de l'artes de l'artes de l'artes de la solitier en en

"Remarks of a construction of the set of the

and a second	188823 Alexandro andreas		na an an an tha a' suite an a' suite a
	an a	and the Astronomy A	ana Maria - Angala Ang
na an a	n o vyvo spolani o obra obra o na na sel Mita o spola		
a de la companya de l La companya de la comp	e a se a companya a com A companya a	and a second	n an
and a second	医颈状的 复用。	e e e e e e grande de la companya d	
	i de la composición d Composición de la composición de la comp	and and an and a second se	
andar Andreas - Andreas - A Andreas - Andreas - A	an a	en e	
والمحافظ والمتعالية والمعتقد والمعتقد والمعتقد والمعالية	na ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang a	r An an	and a second
	*		
	an an ann an Araba an	an a baan ah an	and a second second Second second
an a	and see the second s		
14 (14) (14) (14) (14) (14) (14) (14) (1	1 W		u na jela stručal da 1923
a na ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana an	and the second	an an an an an an an an the the the the second s	na an ann an Airtean an Airtean Airtean Airtean Airtean
	2 32. j		haty allow a spectrum at the
a na sana ana ana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisi Na fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'	n na na serie and an	n an a carrier a constant a sub-	an a
	×.[1]	,	- 建物的 如果 化油 化加速量
	en e	ning service and the service service service service service services and the service	and a second
	•	terra de Service	i da ha seconda en la second
		antiste des ites	n de la composition d La composition de la c
		e der stationen der	an a
•	Ч		
		• •	
			· · ·
. <u></u>	na na sana na sana na sana sana sa	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<sup>.</sup>
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			· ·
	1. 1		· · · · ·

-

e recordo a definida y que de explore afrecordo que que que concerco danse entre entre entre entre entre entre Guerágicos do los destastes do sector do sel que presentabilizadas entre do entre destas do entre entre entre e Guerágicos do entre entre de la seconda do

Mark and and a second of process of the second and a second stage for the second stage and shows a second stage and sh

Construction and the forestion of the state of the receptor to the state of the state of the construction and specific the forest of the state of the state.

Rogado do Electro do electro do electro e consecta do contra consecto de la servicio de la contra consecta de Deservición

industrial sponsors or of interest to a federal government sponsor. As a result, this kind of research is generally further from commercialization and its accompanying economic impact than research in an applied research project grant program where the sponsors tend to be a single firm. Hence, the chief advantage of establishing a technology research center is to create a reservoir of basic technological knowledge and human expertise that will be needed for future industrial vitality. This translates into the notion that this type of program is perhaps most effective as an instrument for promotion of state strategies based on recruitment and retention of research and development-oriented industry and on new firm formation through university spin-off. Establishment of such programs as centers of excellence would be particularly important for states without exceptionally strong universities. Technology research centers can also play an important role in industrial stabilization where a single technology is crucial to declining industry in the state.

The applied research project grant program is generally a program of matching grants for research conducted at universities with industrial support. In some states, small businesses are also eligible to receive the grants. The programs usually require some demonstrable potential for commercialization as a prerequisite for funding. The research and development typically supported ranges from basic research to development, with most of it falling into the applied research portion of the spectrum. Since these grants are frequently linked to matching sponsorship by a single firm, there is often a more direct path to ultimate commercialization than through technology research centers where several firms may be involved. Applied research matching grants are likely to have an immediate impact on expansion and stabilization of existing industry, including small technology-based firms. These programs should seemingly receive the most near-term emphasis for areas of rapid industrial decline where they can begin to create jobs almost immediately.

University technology research center programs and applied research project grant programs each have unique roles to play as components of state research and development-based economic development strategies. For most states, the optimal strategy will include both types of programs and they should be viewed as complementary initiatives. The effectiveness of state sponsorship of research using either of these models ultimately depends on the efficiency of its ultimate

#### Table 7 (continued)

#### Recent State Research Program Initiatives --Cumulative Funding Commitments through Fiscal 1984

STATE		FUNDIN (millions	G ;)	RESEA PROJI GRA	RCH ECT NT	TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH CENTER	OTHER
New Hampshire							
New Jersey		*	1			х	
New Mexico		20.0			· .	X	and the second sec
New York		2.9		<b>X</b>	.t - 4	X	
North Carolina		48.2			ма Q. 1	X	
North Dakota				• •	· · · ·		
Ohio		32.4		x		Х	
Oklahoma		*	- 1		•		
Oregon							
Pennsylvania		11.0		х	er de la composition de la composition En composition de la c		
Rhode Island		1.5		X	New C	х	
South Carolina	`	×				· ·	
South Dakota							
Tennessee		3.5	÷.,				x
Texas		32.0	(from	State Ur	niversit	y trust)	X and the second
Utah	·				(; · · ·		
Vermont							n an
Virginia		30.3	,			X	Versen in die
Washington		1.6		· X		x	
West Virginia		1.0	•				en en <b>X</b> ina <del>Xi</del> na
Wisconsin	17	2.0	1. 	x	an a		
Wyoming		<del></del>	21		n a tha An st		
Total U.S.		369.6		ан торана 1991 - 1994 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1994 - 1			

\*Proposed

Baser security programs and contact the contact of a contact of the content of the contact security security for the description of the velocity of the memory of the contact of the content of the contact of the folger, and the distribution as dignal baser of the contact of the contact of the contact of the contact of the folger, the contact of the folger and the security of the contact of the contact of the contact of the folger of the folger the contact of the folger and the security of the contact of the folger the contact of the folger and the contact of the distribution of the contact of the

and a start of a start of the s

		n en				han an taon 1997. Na h		t the device of the second sec
	میں میں ان فاکھر ایں					·		e teles in
	ζ	•	· .		• •			waar dhadaal
	£ . 35				1			<ol> <li>Statistics (1997)</li> </ol>
				•				an a
	n Na Shiri				а. С			an an taon an t
					a.			
					i. K			
	s Ży	,						an a
	1. 增加				en de e			
					E. F. S.			gi na angeri
					х 1 с 1 с 1			
					1224			
	$\mathbb{E} = \frac{D^2}{2} + \frac{D^2}{2}$			·	•••			
1. N. M. 1	S. A.			·	an An taona		· .	to to April 11
	N. S. A.							
								s and the s
		2			an a			a staling i
1. J.	9 J. V							
					7.1			
· · ·						-		
	8					·		

ender of the offense of the second state of the se

.

# Table 6 Manufacturing Employment BASES BASES

STATE	% CHANGE IN MANUFAC- TURING EMPLMT 1976-81	% OF WKRS EMPLOYED IN MANUFACTURING, 1984
Nevada	54 and care 54.6	4.4
Arizona	52.1	
Florida	- 1995 (1992) - 1995 (1995) - 1995 (1995) - 1995 - 1995 (1995) - 1995 <b>33∞4</b> - 1000 (1995)	10.6
Texas	29.3	13.0 Market
Colorado		11.4 States
Oklahoma	28.2	11.8 <sup>1</sup> 1.1.2
Utah	26.7	14.3
Vermont	25.1	19.3.4 - 1.4
New Hampshire	alel. Jastr 10 Pr. 199 <b>23.4</b>	24.1
Washington	22.6	15.2 subverse 20
California	2 <b>2.5</b>	17.1
Alaska	20.8	<b>0.6</b>
Wyoming	17.9	3.2
South Dakota	16.7	8.4 at 1.200 a
Louisiana	1999-9997 (1999) 1997-9997 (1999) 1997-9997 (1999)	20.5
Kansas	13.2	15.4
Minnesota	13.2	17.1
New Mexico	13.2	6.2
Massachusetts	12.8	21.9
Maine	10.7	<b>20.5</b>
Connecticut	10.6	25.9
Georgia	10.1	20.3
North Carolina	a several de la companya de la compa El companya de la comp	28.3 July 1
Nebraska	8.0	4.4
Arkansas	7.5	21.7
Virginia	6,8	15.1
Alabama	6.4	22.1
South Carolina	5.1	26.4
Oregon	4.6	11.8
Tennessee	4.6	24.5

funded research and development expenditures in the universities may be a better indicator of actual relevant research and are available from the National Science Foundation (NSF) (NSF 1984). An even better indicator of performance as an innovator may be the number of patents granted. The number of patented applications from universities in each state for the period 1963 through 1983 is given in Table 5. Three caveats are necessary regarding Table 5. First, the data appear to be incomplete for some states. Further, the data reflect not only the propensity for invention and the presence of an entrepreneurial culture in a state's universities, but also the institutional patent policies and procedures as well. Finally, legislation passed in 1980 facilitating university ownership of patents resulting from their federal research and development has resulted in a significant increase in the rate of invention disclosure.

Many industrialized states have suffered recent structural declines in manufacturing employment. In addition to encouraging job creation through formation of new high-technology establishments, they seek to retain jobs and stabilize their traditional industries through the infusion of advanced technologies. Some idea of the extent of the problem (or of its converse, industrialization) in each state is given in Table 6. The table contains the state-by-state percentage changes in manufacturing employment during the five-year reference period, 1976-81. This base period was selected because, except for a five-month recessional period during 1981, it is relatively free of cyclical effects. Table 6 also gives the percentage of all workers employed in manufacturing in each state as of June 1984. This statistic is an indication of the importance of manufacturing to the state's economy.

Research and Development Program Design and Development Objectives

The optimal translation of state technology-based development policies into programs should depend on a set of strategic priorities that are uniquely determined by state resources and planning goals. Certain generic program types within the seven basic categories described earlier are rather commonplace. Unfortunately, in some states their raison d'etre as an element of a rational strategy is unclear.

Program initiatives designed specifically to increase the quality and quantity of the human resources for technological innovation through both technical and non-technical

 Table 4 (continued)

 FY 82 R&D Expenditures as a Percentage of Personal Income

L	usera d'atter										
STATE		FEDERAL R&D SUPPORT		INDUSTRY R&D SUPPORT (EST)		UNIVERSIT PERFORME <u>R&amp;D</u>	'Y ED PI	FED. LAB.* ERFORMED R&D	* TOTAL* * * R&D (EST)		
New Hampshire	na ani a Dara Aligi	0.518	andrea an An tao An		an a ƙasar Angina Angina	0.285		0.152	erre en		
New Jersey		0.933		3.119		0.110	1,14,0 1,14,0	0.389	4.094		
New Mexico		10.818	1 No	0.564		0.605		8.732	11.521		
New York		0.799		1.739		0.349		0.190	2.635		
North Carolina	18.810	0.514		1.035		0.312	. •_	0.214	1,635		
North Dakota		0.494		-		0.357	a fi si si si	0.234	an a		
Ohio		0.908		1.440		0.181	t en st	0.432	2.392		
Oklahoma	n Maga je je	0.184		0.967		0.198	and the second	0.073	1.266		
Oregon	n Alfra af	0.393	a ser ja	<del></del>		0.333	1. N <sup>2</sup> -	0.122	in an		
Pennsylvania	्र सुद्धी के जीत	0.887		1.834	· · ·	0.271		0.383	2.787		
Rhode Island		2.430				0.442		1.777	n se strander en		
South Carolina	g en p	0.371	in the second			0.180	i i secolo	0.158	i a <del>se</del> j ta se		
South Dakota		0.287	istration.		n de la competition de la comp	0.182	r i i i	0.197			
Tennessee	A the st	1.735				0.195		0.717			
Texas	an in	0,612				0.252		0.135			
Utah	an ta sa	2.138		0.705		0.609	5 M K	0.371	3.014		
Vermont	n sje	0.750			देखरे ह	0.396		0.021	n an		
Virginia	1974 - Aj	2.155	5 °	0.416		0.180		0.938	2.616		
Washington		2.150				0.352		0.478			
West Virginia		0.533				0.129		0.316			
Wisconsin	NACL (1	0.257		1.153	1.7 X	0.376		0.040	1.546		
Wyoming		0,402				0.241	ara i	0.209	n an an an an Anna an A		
Total U.S.		1.403		1.472	and the second	0.288	an a	0.500	2.975		
•							-12.5				

\*Data not available for certain states due to sensitivity of data for proprietory information

\*\*Federal Intramural plus federally funded R&D Centers \*\*\*Excludes state and local R&D outside of universities

#### Table 3 (continued)

## FY 82 R&D Expenditures and Personal Income (billions)

STATE	FEDERAL R&D SUPPORT	INDUSTRY* R&D SUPPORT (EST)	UNIVERSITY PERFORMED R&D	FED. LAB.** PERFORMED R&D	TOTAL** R&D (EST)	* PERSONAL INCOME
New Hampshire	0.051	t do <del>sea</del>	0.028	0.015		9.84
New Jersey	0.888	2.967	0.105	0.370	3.895	95 <b>.</b> 13
New Mexico	1.323	0.069	0.074	1.069	1.409	12.23
New York	1.692	3.686	0.740	0.402	5.585	211.98
North Carolina	0.273	0.550	0.166	0.114	0.869	53.15
North Dakota	0.036	1 1 1 <del>-</del>	0.026	0.017	<b></b>	7.28
Ohio	1.025	1.626	0.204	0.489	2.701	112.94
Oklahoma	0.066	0.346	0.071	0.026	0,453	35.79
Oregon	0.106	ಿತ್ರವಾದ	0.090	0.033		27.01
Pennsylvania	1,131	2.345	0.345	0.488	3,553	127.49
Rhode Island	0.242	e sai <del>t i</del>	0.044	0.177	·	9.96
South Carolina	0.099		0.048	0.042		26.66
South Dakota	0.019	, p <b></b>	0.012	0.013		6.61
Tennessee	0.702	. N <del></del>	0.079	0.290		40.46
Texas	1.054	- 	0.433	0.233		172.09
Utah	0.288	0.095	0.082	0.050	0.406	13.47
Vermont	0.036	1 <del></del> .	0.019	0.001		4.80
Virginia	1.268	0.245	0.106	0.552	1.540	58.86
Washington	1.039	* 	0.170	0.231		48.33
West Virginia	0.091	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0.022	0.054		17.07
Wisconsin	0.129	0.579	0.189	0.020	0.776	50.20
Wyoming	0.025		0.015	0.013	<b>-</b>	6.22
Total U.S.	35.361	37.091	7.261	12.601	74.963	2520.17
de Vel	1977) 1979 - Alexandre	ter y dia a			· •	

\*Data not available for certain states due to sensitivity of data for proprietary information

\*\*Federal Intramural plus federally funded R&D Centers

\*\*\*Excludes state and local R&D outside of universities

Sources: National Science Foundation, U.S. Department of Commerce

Human resources are an important part of the technological infrastructure of a region and the lack of them may be a major impediment to technology-based development of many localities. Past experience indicates that a cadre of "world-class" scientific and engineering talent (preferably with a university connection) together with a pool of workers with more routine technical skills is essential for the establishment of a high-growth rate regional high-technology center. An adequate base of routine skills is also essential for state strategies involving recruitment of branch plants.

It is difficult to garner any single set of statistics which will be an adequate measure of the human resources of a state. A picture begins to emerge, however, from looking at the geographic distribution by state of a few basic statistics. A state-by-state table of data compiled from the 1980 Census of the numbers and percentages of engineers and natural scientists, technicians and technologists, and precision production workers is included in the Appendix. The demographics are, to a great extent, reflective of the distribution of Group I high-technology industry.

In addition to the human resources required as the raw material for technological innovation, the work product and spin-off ideas of technical personnel employed in research and development are necessary for major innovations to occur. An indirect measure of these technology resources are research and development expenditures by various institutional performers. The nature of the dependence of regional economic growth on research and development expenditures is reviewed by Malecki (1983a). The connection is tenuous, and its causal relationship is elusive, but nevertheless, the phenomenon of growth stimulated by research and development expenditures by various performers and supporters. Table 4 shows these data as a percentage of state personal income as an alternative to per capita percentages. Personal income is a proxy for gross state product, and percentages based on this output measure should give a good indication of the significance of the level of investment in research and development to states' economies for purposes of interstate comparisons, much as gross national product research and development percentages are used for international comparisons.

#### Table 1

Employment in Three Groups of High Technology Industries for All States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the Virgin Islands, 1981 and 1982 **Annual Averages** 

(States are ranked by 1982 Employment.) (1)

GROUP		GROUP		1		
ANNUA	AVERAGE	ANNUAL	AVERAGE	ļ	ANNUAL	AVERAGE
1781	1982	1981	1982	 	1981	1982
US 12876.5	12413.0	US 2562.5	2555.6	US	5859.9	5736.5
CA 1534.8	1522.9	CA 592.7	609.3	CA	929.1	940.1
NY 917.5	905.4	MA 158.3	158.5	TX	375.8	366.8
IL 716.0	652.7	NJ 113.3	115.4	MA	300.9	299.9
MI 601.4 PA 628.6	631.4	FL 102.0 CT 99.0	106.3	IL PA	285.5	269.4
NJ 511.4	506.5	IL 98.4	93.7	OH	258.0	239.5
FL 359.2	362.7	WA 90.5	87.6	FL	164.0	167.6
IN 367.2 CT 285.7	336.5	OH 73.5 AZ 68.1	70.1	IN MO	169.1	153.2
MO 274.3	263.2	IN 65.9	61.7	WA	129.3	121.7
WI 283.1	260.8	MN 53.3	54.7	NC	120.6	119.5
VA 222.3	224.4	CO 39.5	42.8	TN	109.3	106.2
TN 233.3 GA 212.1	219.3	KS 50.9 MD 33.7	40.4	NI NI	97.7	103.3
LA 219.4	209.2	MI 30.4	28.8	CO MD	81.4	87.1
MD 191.6	191.0	NH 26.6	26.8	AZ	86.5	86.5
OK 192.6	187.3	OK 23.6	22.3	GA	68.1	78.2
AZ 150.1 SC 146.7	144.3	UT 21.1 AL 19.9	22.2	KS	76.3	64.3
KY 152.9	139.6	VA 20.2 TN 17.9	21.7	PR AL	54.0 49.2	51.9
IA 153.8	134.8	OR 14.5	15.3	OK .	45.9	44.8
OR 96.4	89.4	IA 14.0	13.5	KY	48.5	43.4
AR 90.9 MS 87.5	85.2	VT 13.2 WI 12.1	13.2	DE	42.0	40.8
NH 70.2 PR 73.5	72.6	NE 11.5	10.6	IA UT	36.6	34.3
UT 65.4	66.9	KY 18.7	94	AR	34.8	32.3
DE 56.7	55.8	RI 7.8	7.8	MS	28.5	26.3
NE 58.9 NM 49.7	51.8	MS 5,9	5.6	NE	21.2	20.2
RI 38.4	a 36.3 a	AR 5.4 ID 4.4	4.7	RI	19.8	19.9
ID 32.7	31.3	SD 3.5	3.0	ID ME	13.9	14.1
ME 29.8	29.3	DE 1.8		NV	10.6	agen (j. 11.1
WY 25.4	25.2	ND 0.6	0.6	DC	3.8	3.4
ND 22.8 MT 20.0	23.6	DC 0.3 MT 0.3	0.3	MY MT	2.7	2.5
SD 20.1 HT 17 1	18.2	WY 0.2	<b>0.2</b> (2)	HI	2.3	2.1
AK 14.5	16.4		25	ŇĎ.	1 1.4	1.3

<sup>1</sup>Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor

<sup>2</sup>Employment of less than 100 workers

	ĵ.				
	an Pola S				
19		Х.			<u>:</u>
. No.		t via			
1998		an a			
	n Na Selas				
• •					
ter e con				Se No	
nin Kan	1 M. 14 A.	W Source and			
				· · · · ·	· · · · · ·
				······································	·
			•		

(i) A star instant in the end of the start of the star

- Lensel and several set and several several endowing of the cost of the local according to the

that are of instrumental importance to the promotion of national economic development, such as education and training, infrastracture provision and maintenance, business management and technical assistance, and export financing. The involvement of state government is especially critical in the stimulation of national economic growth through technological innovation, and the nation's governors have been at the forefront in promoting initiatives designed to encourage technological innovation (NGA 1983).

n in the safety of the state of the

The previously-mentioned reports by NGA (1983), OTA (1983; 1984a; 1984b) and SRI (1984b) delineate the state role in technological innovation for economic development. The NGA report lists five key functional categories into which state program initiatives fall. Peltz and Weiss (1984) restate these categories in a somewhat more general categorization and give their notion of the type of activities they encompass. Their categories are: policy development, education and training, basic and applied research, technical and management assistance to innovating firms, and financial assistance to innovating firms. OTA (1984b) lists a similar group of functional categories: research, development, and technology transfer; human capital, including education and training; entrepreneurship training and assistance; financial capital; physical capital; and information gathering and dissemination. SRI's (1984b) categories are: advocacy, policymaking and oversight; technical assistance programs.

see here to see the second second back the ment of the

None of these lists appears adequate for a complete generic description of state initiatives. Both NGA (1983) and Pletz and Weiss (1984) force certain activities into categories in which they do not appear to fit. On the other hand, the OTA (1984b) and SRI (1984b) categories are too broad.

A list that both includes a sufficient number of generic groupings and is specific enough to avoid the generalities of the broader approaches might be:

- (1) policy development; a standard the standard standard the standard sta
- (2) education and training;
- (3) research and development;
- (4) entrepreneurship training and assistance;
- (5) financial assistance to innovating firms;

of similar activity were far more important for <u>new</u> technology-based enterprise development than for branch formation.

In quantitative research findings summarized by OTA (1984b), Glasmeier, et al., identified airport access, a large labor force, high defense spending and major universities to be important influences in high-technology growth of metropolitan areas. A more subjective study by Premus conducted for the U.S. Congressional Joint Economic Committee (1982), using survey interview methodology, highlights additional factors, such as business cost, climate factors, and quality of life as also being important.

NGA (1983) attributes to Robert Ady of the Fantus Corporation a description of different requirements for technology-based businesses at different stages of product development. According to Ady, location criteria are different depending on whether the product is in the theory-driven stage, the product-driven stage, or the market-driven stage. In the initial or theory-driven stage of an embryonic firm with an embryonic product, the necessary ingredients are high-risk venture capital, close contact with university research and other technology-based enterprises, and reasonably priced natural or artificial incubator facilities for feasibility testing and developmental research. In the second stage, where the product is proven viable but is still unique, a supply of trained technicians and skilled workers becomes essential as well as access to research and development facilities, attractive living conditions, and a favorable business climate. Finally, in the market-driven stage, which is characterized by price competition and mass production, traditional industrial location variables such as labor and energy costs, tax exemptions, and other incentives become important.

Malecki (1983) summarizes most of the existing knowledge about high-technology growth in citing regional industrial mix, product cycle mix, university research, infrastructure, capital availability, history of new firm formation, and government research and development and procurement as being the most important ingredients in the generation of new economic activity. He also points out that the location of a firm's research and development activity is most often based on proximity to corporate headquarters and on the locality's attractiveness to research personnel. Therefore, this activity is unlikely to be relocated, particularly to areas lacking in appeal to culturally sophisticated professionals.
The involvement of government in the innovation process has been studied extensively (see Rothwell and Zequeld 1981); however, from a policy standpoint, it is unclear where the various levels of government can most appropriately and effectively intervene in the innovation process to stimulate it. Intervention is possible at any stage in the innovation process and the potential is made clear when the innovation process is described in terms of the product cycle. The process in this context is (Office of Technology Assessment (OTA) 1983): (1) research and development of innovative products and processes; (2) commercial application of innovation and the associated creation of new firms; (3) attraction, expansion, or standardization of production among producers of innovations; and (4) application of new technologies by established users of innovations.

The federal government has supported all phases of research and development in areas related to national defense and aerospace and basic research in all areas. The support for basic research is justifiable on the grounds that the <u>social rate</u> of return is high and that industry tends to underinvest in basic research because of its low <u>financial rate</u> of return and the difficulty in capturing its results for exclusive exploitation by the sponsoring firm. On the other hand, government has traditionally left commercialization of technology and its subsequent adoption to the private sector. The effectiveness of the federal government's traditional strategy is the essence of the discussions involving technology in the national industrial policy debate. A recent report by the Congressional Budget Office (1984) contains an excellent discussion of federal support for research and development.

### Technology-Based Regional Economic Development

Many localities have initiated programs to promote technological innovation as an economic development strategy. They perceive that these strategies will lead to some combination of desirable outcomes such as increased employment and job quality or higher personal income levels. Such strategies should be pursued judiciously since they can also have negative economic consequences (Wiewel, et al. 1984).

A number of state and local efforts have been catalogued in a series of reports from OTA (1983; 1984a; 1984b), the National Governors' Association (NGA) (NGA 1983),

9

e proprieta de la composición de la com	문화 전형을 쉽지요?	计控制 医手足的 医	i ya kata kata Tanan kata kata

COMPONENTS	INVENTION/INNOVATION (PREMARKET)			COMMERCIALIZATION (MARKET)		
ACTIVITIES	IDEA GENERATION	IDEA EVALUATION AND DEVELOPMENT	PRODUCT/PROCESS EVALUATION AND REFINEMENT	NEW VENTURE IM- TIATION; NEW PRODUCT/PROCESS INTRODUCTION	VENTURE GROWTH; SPIN-OFF OF PROD- UCTS AND PROCESSES	BUSINESS AND TECHNOLOGY MATURATION
PRMARY Participants	CORPORATE, CASUAL, AND PROFESSIONAL INVENTORS	TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATORS		TECHNOLOGICAL ENTREPRENEURS; ENTREPRENEURIAL MANAGERS; MANAGEMENT TEAM		MANAGERS
OTHER NECESSARY PARTICIPANTE	SOURCE OF CAPITAL FOR RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT		SOURCES OF DE- VELOPMENT CAPITAL (GENERALLY SMALL AMOUNTS): BUSINFSS AND MARKETING PLANNING	VENTURE/RISK CAPITAL SOURCES; LAWYERS: ACCOUNTANTS; MARKETING AND FINANCIAL		BOURCES OF EXPANSION CAPITAL
SKILLS NEEDED BY PARTICIPANTS	BCIENTIFIC EXPERTIBE	TECHNOLOGY/ ENGINELHING EXPERTISE	TECHNICAL, ENGI- NEERING, AND SOME BUSINESS EXPERTISE	MANAGEMENT EXPER CAPABILITY: NEW PH DEVELOPMENT CAPA	ITISE; R&D OUUCT BRITY	BUSINESS SKILLS INCLUDING TECH- NICAL MARKETING AND MANAGEMENT

Fig. 2. Technological Innovation Process: Component Activities, Participants, and Needs (Rorke, et. al., 1983).

المتحكم الرجع معرفة المراجع المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحم المحمد المحمد

Suma and density of the state of the state, you we the state of the

So a server that has setted been a second of a second of a setter of the constraint of the second of the horizon of the set of the second of the set of the second of t

A still more recent estimate by Birch (1983) for the 1977-81 period attributes 51 percent of new jobs to businesses with fewer than twenty employees. However, both the original Birch (1978) and the Armington and Odle (1982a; 1982b) studies report that new establishments, both large and small, contribute one-half or more of net new jobs. An excellent discussion of both studies is contained in Vaughan (1983).

Harris (1984a; 1984b) recently studied the phenomenon of job creation in hightechnology industry. This study revealed the following facts about the high-technology industry sector: (1) under Harris' definition of high-technology, in 1980 the sector employed less than 10 percent of the total work force and 60 percent of this employment was in large firms of more than 10,000 employees; (2) between 1976 and 1980, hightechnology employment growth of 19.4 percent was 1.7 times the percentage growth in other manufacturing plus business services; and (3) within the sector, small firms of less than 500 employees grew twice as fast as larger firms and contributed 40 percent of net new jobs, although their share of total sector employment was only 20 percent.

It would appear, then, that the potential of small high-technology firms for job creation within the sector itself is significant but these firms are not at this time the dominant source of jobs. Moreover, the entire sector will contribute only a small fraction of new jobs created. The Bureau of Labor Statistics (Riche, et al. 1983) estimates that between 1982 and 1995, high technology industry will account for between 3 percent and 17 percent of net new jobs, depending on whether a narrow or broad definition of "high technology" is adopted.

There may, however, be an indirect effect of the innovative activity to which these firms contribute that is far more important than their employment statistics. Birch and MacCracken (1984) have advanced the concept of a "high innovation" sector of which the high-technology sector is a subset. They hypothesize that the principal benefit of the innovative activity in the <u>high</u> innovation sector is the creation of jobs in smaller businesses in the <u>low</u> technology sector. This is accomplished through innovative activity spawned by the primary and secondary impacts of technology transfer to the traditional business sector.

ù.

### 도 영화를 즐기고 있는 것

programmatic components of state development strategies involving research are then discussed and general conclusions are formed regarding optimal individual state strategies based on relevant state economic and demographic characteristics. Finally, a research and development-based economic development research program initiatives of selected states are assessed within the analysis framework presented. A companion report (Watkins 1985) discusses state program initiatives which focus on the commercialization of ideas derived from basic and applied research.

n fan de la colonie fan de service en anteres anna altitus annellen. De a anteres al fan de service al fan de En de service application de la colonie de service anteres de la colonie de la colonie de service de service de That has the colonie de service de service de la transferance de la colonie de service anteres de service de se

terrand states that the second states of the states of the second states of the second states of the states of the second states of the states of the second states of the second

a de la tradición de la seconda de la contra d

一定都 化强度设计 网络布兰子拉马卡拉卡尔马

and a second a se

an a transmission and a second an Second and a second a Second and a second a

n Maria ana ang <sub>ban</sub>an itan ang pang pang pang pang Dara ana bagi na ang bananan bana ang pangkan Marian ang pana pang darakan ang pangkan

 Bala a sector as all an alter alter all all antices altered at sector all general sector and algebra equilation all sectors.
Bala a alter alter alter and algebra equilation all sectors.
Bala a alter alter alter alter and alter and alter alter

a a Sector a sector a atom a a as

가지 않고 가지가 있었다. 전화법에는 가지 않고 있다. - 사람과 동안

.

(1) A set of the second state as a set of the ballowing second s second s second secon second se

Figure 20 and an example of contraction of the example of the example of the second s second seco

organista en antina en alterna en a

en en en en se se service de la section de

# Carrier du Prinz Recencie de la Carre de

1894 - Josef Market and State a

.

Ģ.